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(Gavel)

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We shall call to order the Budget

20

and Finance Committee of the Council of the County

21

of Maui.

22

the budget decision process.

23

April, 2003.

24
25

We will continue our -- continue review of
This is the 17th of

Before we start, Members, and I did inform
you that we may need to go into this evening, we
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1

4

also have testimony this morning.

2

But before we start that, we shall take the

3

role, and we have Mr. Carroll, Mr. Kane,

4

Ms. Johnson, Mr. Mateo, Mr. Molina, Mr. Nishiki,

5

Mr. Pontanilla, and Ms. Tavares.

6

present.

All members

I will ask you at the beginning of this

7
8

morning's meeting that I will ask all of you to use

9

tomorrow and the weekend to come up with proposals

10

of how you plan to cut $13.5 million from the budget

11

by Monday morning and that you can present to the

12

Chair, and the Chair will then do a compilation.

13

And if that doesn't happen, then I would like

14

you to know that the Chair will have a proposal, but

15

I prefer that you folks look and provide comments,

16

particularly in your regions, your districts.
But before we consider any other increases in

17
18

fees or taxes, you will look first to cut thirteen

19

five

20

.5 million dollars.
One thing I will share with you for the

21

record is that when it comes to grants, there is

22

only one way to pay for it.

23

not float and get borrowed money to fund grants.

24
25

That is cash.

We do

So if you do have a project that you believe
worthy and you want to ask Committee support, then
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1

help find a way of how it will be funded; and if

2

need be, where you're going to cut to provide that

3

funding of cash.

4

So Monday, 8 o'clock, I will wait with

5

anticipation your suggestions in how to reduce $13.5

6

million cash.

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Nishiki?
Yeah.

Have you had any communication

8

with Administration?

9

here for me to ask any questions.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I -- I see no representative

No, they just informed the Chair that they

11

will be available if we call, but they will not

12

be -- Mr. Agsalog will not be present this

13

morning --

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Oh.

okay.

He is working on his -- his

Okay.

But the march continues, and

16

revisions.

17

we'll continue to do our job.

18

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So they sent nothing down?

I have always provided as soon as I receive

20

copies of communications.

21

that means I don't have it.

22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

23

ITEM NO.1:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

And if you don't have it,

Got it.

FISCAL YEAR 2004 BUDGET

Okay, Members, we will start with testimony

for this morning.

Each one who's wishing to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

6

BF 4/17/03

Please state your

1

testify, you have three minutes.

2

name, if you represent an organization, your

3

organization's name.
If you reach the three-minute mark, the Staff

4
5

will inform you of the three minute, and you will

6

have one minute to conclude your testimony before

7

this Committee.

8

Evanson.

Okay.

The first person is Mary

And before Ms. Evanson starts, I ask all of

9
10

us to give each other the same courtesy.

Turn off

11

your pagers, your cell phones, and any other

12

mechanism that may cause a disturbance because the

13

Chair will remove himself, too, if need be.

14

thank you.

Okay,

Ms. Evanson?
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

15

16

MS. EVANSON:

Thank you.

17

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

18

MS. EVANSON:

Good morning.
Morning.

I have been here for quite a while.

Over

19

the years, I would be here all the time pushing for

20

the Maui Nui Botanical Garden, and I certainly hope

21

that you people will continue to fund the Garden as

22

you have in the past.

23

Today

24

speaking for myself.

25

concern about the Community Work Day Program.

and my name's Mary Evanson, and I am
I'm here today primarily my
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Having been a volunteer over the years and

1

2

having used volunteers, I know how extremely

3

important it is to keep volunteer programs going.
The Community Work Day is involved with many,

4

I was looking at their schedule for

5

many projects.

6

this year.

7

kids, seniors, everybody in between.
Also having been a volunteer, I know how

8
9

They help volunteer programs concerning

wonderful the feeling of having done volunteer work

10

and having done something good.

It's satisfying to

11

say you know, I did good.

12

good to be out there working, whether it's picking

13

up litter on the highway, planting plants at the

14

botanical garden, or whatever.

15

satisfaction in doing volunteer work.

It makes me feel real

There's a lot of

And in these hard times, we're going to need

16
17

to turn more and more to volunteers to help

18

projects, whether it's with a private agency or a

19

government department.

20

There are many things that volunteers can do

21

so I'm hoping that you will keep them funded to the

22

best of your ability.

23

tough.

24
25

I know it's going to be

But I was telling somebody a short time ago,
it's hard to understand when our property values
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1

have doubled in the last year so where's the money?

2

Let's find the money.

3

so thank you very much.

4
5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Ms. Evanson.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Any questions for

Ms. Evanson this morning, Members?

6

8

I'm sure it's there somewhere

No.

Thank you very much for being here.

Tony

Davis?
MS. DAVIS:

Aloha.

Good morning.

My name is Tony Marie

10

Davis, and I am the Executive Director for the

11

Activities and Attractions Association of Hawaii,

12

but you couldn't pay me money to stand up here and

13

tell you something I don't feel in my heart having

14

lived here for 16 years as a resident.

15

I am here before you to talk about -- after

16

the -- this budget, which I know you guys have a lot

17

of challenges, a hot issue is going to come back on

18

the table which has to do with parks.

19

And it -- the -- surfing was a very hot issue

20

towards the end of the last administration.

21

Kayaking is huge now.

22

takes place, takes place on State -- out of State

23

parks, but there is a Senate bill, Senate Bill 39,

24

that is going through that is devising a way to

25

transfer State parks over to counties so it would be

Much of the kayaking that
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1

2

within all of your jurisdiction.
If you look at any of the problems that have
and have gotten into the

3

come up and -- and

4

public where there's a conflict between the

5

commercial and the resident users, a lot of times

6

those conflicts

7

Those conflicts would have been resolved had there

8

been proper enforcement at the parks.

9

not a lot, all of the time.

There are ordinances in place, and they're

10

pretty good.

11

met -- a group of commercial users and myself met

12

with Jo Anne Johnson and gave to her some proposed

13

new ordinances for the parks.

14

You'll be surprised.

Yesterday, we

And I think when you read 'em, you'll be

15

pretty surprised that it was put together by

16

commercial users because you'll see things in there

17

that actually tighten the regulations.

18

Confiscating of materials if you violate.

No

19

more permits if you violate.

20

ethical users want enforcement.

21

be with those bad apples that exist that -- if you

22

go down to the State parks down at Makena, it's like

23

a circus down there right now.

24

in some ways.

25

The -- the responsible
They don't want to

It's out of control

You need proper management, proper

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808)

524-2090

INC.

10

BF 4/17/03

So please, what 11m here to ask you

1

enforcement.

2

for is to include enforcement officers, whatever is

3

adequate.

4

more than two.

5

for parks, some type of park ranger.

I don't know the number.

At minimum, two enforcement officers

I know youlre

6

I would think

7

right now.

8

to Parks, specifically.

9

to start this up.

youlre facing a challenge

There's the $300,000 trust that came in
Possibly that could be used

And I think also if you have enforcement in

10
11

place, a lot of revenue will be produced and brought

12

into Parks because people are towing the line

13

properly, and there is responsible commercial with

14

the -- the visitors and with residents at the parks.

15

So in some ways, it will -- it will even pay for

16

itself.

Thank you very much.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you very much.

18

MS. DAVIS:

19

CHAI R HOKAMA:

20

MS. DAVIS:

Oh, can I add one more thing?
Sure.

Please don't cut MVB's funding at all.

21

need all the support.

22

industry, and they do a wonderful job.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's a big part of our

Thank you, Ms. Davis.

Any questions for

24

Ms. Davis this morning, Members?

25

you very much for being here.

Seeing none, thank

Kiope Raymond?
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1

Chairman Hokama, members of the Committee,

MR. RAYMOND:

2

aloha and good morning.

My name is Kiope Raymond.

3

Today, I'm representing Maui Community College.
At the end of my remarks, I'd like to take

4
5

that hat off and make -- make a personal statement.

6

So although I just checked the one box for Maui

7

Community College, I do have something personal to

8

say.

9

I'm here today to help explain the

10

relationship between Maui Community College and the

11

Maui Nui Botanical Gardens.

12

It should be made clear first off, for those

13

who may not be aware, that Lisa

14

Schattenburg-Raymond, the Executive Director of the

15

Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, is my wife, but our

16

professional lives are such that we can compliment

17

each other, and I wanted to share a couple of things

18

that are happening at Maui Community College.

19

You certainly have heard about the attempt to

20

create a baccalaureate.

21

But there are other degrees at Maui Community

22

College.

23

It's called the ABID(?)

We start with Certificates of Competence, we

24

move to Certificates of Completion, we move to

25

Certificates of Achievement, Associate in Applied
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1

Science, Associate of Arts, Associate of Science

2

degrees.

3

focus on the baccalaureate that our community needs.

4

There are many things besides the current

Specifically today, I wanted to let you know

5

that -- the area of Hawaiian education.

6

specifically -- more specifically, the Institute for

7

Hawaiian Education has begun at Maui Community

8

College.

9

And

I used to be a one-man band there, but now

10

we've been growing in course offerings, we've been

11

growing in the number of lecturers and people who

12

are reaching out into our communities.

13

And what we find is that our communities are

14

telling us what they need.

And what they need are a

15

clear reflection of what the Department of Education

16

is already focusing on, and that's career pathways.

17

And when we say Hawaiian Studies, well,

18

what -- what are you going to do with Hawaiian

19

Studies?

20

We are focusing on three different areas.

We're focusing on health and human services,

21

we're focusing on performing arts, and we're

22

focusing on the area that's most germane to the Maui

23

Nui Botanical Gardens, natural resources

24

conservation.

25

Certainly, though, don't forget that
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1

performing arts, from a Hawaiian perspective, needs

2

a place where they can connect to the aina.

3

can't just have people going -- running off up into

4

the kuaiwis any time they feel like it.

We

So a place like the Maui Nui Botanical

5
6

Gardens provides a place where people can go, see

7

the plants they're going to use for decoration, for

8

adornment when they're dancing that have a spiritual

9

connection as they're into their performing arts.
Health and Human Services, we know that

10
11

Federal legislation is allowing for native

12

practitioners.

13

umbrella of Keolo Pono -- I'm sorry, under a larger

14

umbrella in -- In Health and Human Services that is

15

going to create a Council here on Maui of people who

16

will --

It is Hui No Keolo Pono, under the

17

MR. TAGUCHI:

-- three minutes.

18

MR. RAYMOND:

Thank you.

19

three?

20

MR. TAGUCHI:

Three minutes.

21

MR. RAYMOND:

Okay.

22

I should come back because I have

more to say.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

MR. RAYMOND:

25

I'm sorry, was that two or

you.

You need to conclude --- I can conclude in one minute if -- thank

Those people will be laau lapaau.
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1

to get to the garden.

They need to be able to know

2

the plants that they're going to work with, with

3

their clients.
But most importantly again! natural resources

4
5

conservation, we see jobs and career paths; and

6

therefore, economic opportunity in areas like

7

environmental planning, environmental impact

8

assessments, remediation restoration for all of the

9

projects here on Maui, Wildlife Science, Forestry,

10

Biotechnology, Plant Science! Agricultural Science,

11

even perhaps in the future, Aquaculture Operations

12

Management and certainly, Eco-Tourism, Parks and

13

Recreation, falling under Recreation Culture!

14

Agriculture, Forest and Wildlife Management, and

15

Human and Urban Systems.
We need to fit in.

16

The place that allows for

17

that is the Maui Nui Botanical Garden! and I can't

18

stress enough please support them.
Quickly, I'll take that off.

19

As an

20

individual, I believe so much in nonprofits that I

21

would be willing to pay more taxes if I knew that

22

those taxes would go directly! especially if

23

possible, to the great nonprofits in our community,

24

and I just thank you all for taking the time to

25

listen.
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1
2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

MR. RAYMOND:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

Any questions for

Mr. Raymond this morning?

3

5

Thank you, Mr. Raymond.

Mahalo to all of you.

Mahalo.

Thank you very much for being here.

Lisa

Schattenburg-Raymond?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND:

Aloha, Chairman Hokama and

I know that this has been a -- or

7

Council members.

8

is a difficult process, and you have many difficult

9

decisions to make this year.

And I'm here today to

10

ask you for your continued support of the Maui Nui

11

Botanical Gardens.

12

I'm Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond.

I'm the

13

Executive Director of the Gardens.

14

Botanical Gardens has a partnership with the County

15

to manage, restore, and expand the botanical

16

gardens.

17

Maui Nui

The Garden is a public facility, and we

18

strive to develop the resources of the Garden to

19

support the community's needs and interests.

20

Last year, we were able to submit -- we were

21

asked to submit our budget request just a few weeks

22

after September 11th.

23

crashing, and there were many, many layoffs.

24
25

The economy was just

We voluntarily took a 20 percent cut to
support the increased needs of social service
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1

agencies.

Now this cut is beginning to affect us.

2

Our County funding will run out this month, and I

3

will need to cover my personnel expenses for about

4

five months until the next funding is available.
Currently, I can only afford to have a

5

She works two days

6

part-time volunteer coordinator.

7

a week.

8

week.

9

to train and supervise these volunteers, and we are

I have volunteers at the Garden six days a
That means that I or other staff members have

10

stretched to the limit with our own

11

responsibilities.

12

Because we have such a small staff,

13

volunteers are absolutely essential to main our

14

maintain our basic functions, and -- and Mary

15

Evanson mentioned how important volunteers are, and

16

they just -- they bring so many resources to the

17

Garden that we, you know, don't have to pay for,

18

and -- and we just really depend on them.

19

So since last year, demand on our staff and

20

facilities has grown exponentially.

21

say again that I did not anticipate the many ways

22

that we have been able to support our community

23

through job training, through education, through

24

conservation and recreation.

25

And I have to

So I have to make this volunteer coordinator
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It's -- it's

1

position a full-time position.

2

essential.

3

are requesting will allow that support to cover our

4

basic costs and allow me to apply for matching funds

5

to expand this position.

And the hundred thousand dollars that we

Again, I -- I just want to remind you of the

6

7

resources that we have brought to this County.

In

8

the short time that we have been at the Gardens, we

9

brought in over $167,000 of non-County funding.

We

10

have the potential to do so much more, but we need

11

your support now.
And at this early stage, we need the County

12
13

to provide that foundation that would allow us to

14

continue with the development of the Garden.
So thank you very much, and I invite you to

15
16

attend our Earth Day Celebration -- I think

17

everybody got one of our programs, and meet some of

18

the 30 -- over 30 conservation organizations that

19

are attending that event and are doing really

20

important conservation work locally.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Any questions for

22

Ms. Schattenburg-Raymond this morning, Members?

23

Seeing none, thank you very much.

24
25

MS. COWAN:

Good morning.

Chris Cowan?

Pundy Yokouchi and I have

planned a joint presentation.

Would that be
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1

possible to have us both at the podium?

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MS. COWAN:

Excuse me, I'm sorry.

I'm sorry.

Mr. Chair, Pundy Yokouchi, the

4

Board Chair for the Maui Arts and Cultural Center

5

and I have planned a joint presentation.

6

both -- can we share the podium?

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

MS. COWAN:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Yeah.

Can we

You both have signed up?

We both have signed up.
Yes, so that's fine with me.

No

objections, Members?

11

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

13

MR. YOKOUCHI:

Thank you and good morning, members of the

14

Council.

First, I'd like to thank the Council

15

excuse me, my name is Pundy Yokouchi.

16

Chairman of the Maui Arts and Cultural Center.

17

And first of all, I'd like to thank the

I'm the

18

members of this Council and this body for supporting

19

the center for the past nine years.

20

funding has been very, very consistent, and we

21

actually depend on that for matching funds.

22

The County

And secondly, we appreciate and we very much

23

are concerned and respect the Council's position

24

today, especially in this budget deliberations

25

because I know how difficult it is this year.
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And welre also concerned about all the

1

If some of these

2

nonprofits and that -- the burden.

3

nonprofits should really suffer or collapse, the

4

burden on the government will be even greater than

5

what it is today.
But this morning, welre here to speak on

6
7

behalf of the Maui Arts and Cultural Center.

8

been a very, very successful venture.

It has

The people of Maui are much more aware of the

9
10

arts and themselves because of this centerls worth

11

and especially among the school children.

12

seen results that -- even today, we receive national

13

recognition.

We have

In fact just last week, Chris went to the

14
15

Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts, that it

16

recognizes one of eight groups recognized nationally

17

to represent this country and using as one of the

18

models for the arts in education.
I will turn this time over for Chris who can

19
20

21

explain some of the programs they do.
MS. COWAN:

Thank you.

Welre here today -- to -- to bring you up to

22

speed on some of the current and new realities for

23

funding for the center in the coming year.

24

is Chris Cowan.

25

Arts and Cultural Center.

My name

11m president and CEO of the Maui
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20

Ongoing realities, things that haven't

2

changed and we don't see changing in the coming

3

year, as you know, we provide numerous services at

4

the center which do not generate income or enough

5

income to cover costs.

6

We had 1,735 activities in the last year.

7

seventy percent of those were community-based, and

8

therefore heavily subsidized.

9

therefore, helps keeps the Center accessible and

The County funding,

10

affordable for our community.

11

also supports a very fine nationally recognized

12

education program.

13

And as Pundy said, it

County funding helps leverage additional

14

income from the private sector.

15

difference when we go to foundations or to

16

individuals to be able to say yes, the County

17

provides significant support.

18

Center is leveraging County mundy -- money where

19

dollar is 17 to 1.

20

It makes a

And currently, the

Our cost of business, as everybody's, are

21

continually going up, and there are things that we

22

can't control.

23

control.

24
25

We -- what we can control, we try to

And over time, while the County money has
been very significant and continues to be very
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1

important, we have not asked for more each year.

2

And the ratio of the County money has gone from 13

3

percent of our budget to 5.7 percent of our budget

4

this year.
Our request for services continue to increase

5

6

as well, and we operate on a very tight budget so

7

funding -- any funding cuts have an exponential

8

effect to our -- the services and programs we can

9

provide.

10

11

Pundy's going to explain a little bit

about new realities we're facing.
MR. YOKOUCHI:

I was down the Governor's Office two weeks

12

ago, and I also met with Shan Tsutsui who's in the

13

Ways and Means Committee.

14

And it really shocked me because there was no

15

funds allotted to -- fundamentally at -- at the

16

charities throughout the State, and there was zero

17

for the Maui Arts and Cultural Center, as there's

18

none for all the other charities.

19

There was just a small portion of charities

20

that were funded; but again, they're very, very

21

insignificant amounts.

22

So every year, that legislature has been

23

very, very kind to us; but this year, they face the

24

same kind of problem that you do.

25

how they're going to finish the session; but right

And I don't know
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now, it doesn't look too good for us so it's a

2

double whammy if the County, again, have to cut back

3

on us.
And as Chris mentioned, we use the County

4
5

funds to go around to match them because the

6

fundamental questions the charities -- I mean, the

7

foundations ask is first,

8

contribute and what percentage.

9

hitting 100 percent all these years.

if your Board of Directors
Well, we've been

And secondly, we have a campaign committee.

10
11

And again, the same question is asked, if -- do they

12

contribute and how much.

13

about government?

And then they ask what

That becomes very important in our asking.

14
15

And every year, we've been able to say yes, the

16

County and the State support us.

17

So your contribution, even though as she

18

mentioned, percentage is just bit better than 5

19

percent, it's still a very significant part.
We've been able to meet our bills because we

20
21

can go around and show them that the community

22

support the Center, and definitely the greater part

23

of the community is represented by you.

24
25

MS. COWAN:

Thank you.

Quickly, a second reality is that we balance

our budget through the contributed and earned
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income, and we have kept abreast -- over, actually,

2

done better than the national average in generating

3

earned income at 57 percent.

4

MR. TAGUCHI:

5

MS. COWAN:

Six minutes.
Thank you.

Versus 43 percent.

53 percent of

6

that income -- earned income comes from 2 percent of

7

our activity, which is the incentive group business

8

and the promoters.

9

And that picture is changing these days.

10

Incentive groups are still coming to the islands,

11

but they're not spending as much money.

12

bringing inspirational speakers so -- instead of

13

entertainers so they don't need our kind of a venue.

14

They're

Promoters are hampered by a monopoly on the

15

mainland that books entertainers into Clear

16

Channel-owned houses.

17

stations and billboards, and it's affecting the

18

whole industry.

19

Clear Channel owns radio

So you may have noticed we have less outdoor

20

events, we have less top name entertainers, and that

21

affects our bottom line of earned income.

22

going to be struggling in the coming year with our

23

earned income side.

24
25

So we're

Contributed income remains good, and our
volunteer support is excellent.

So on that side,
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we're doing well, but the public support and the

2

earned income is a new picture for us.
So we just hope that you'll take this into

3

4

consideration as you make your funding decisions

5

which we know are very hard.

6

extra taxes to support all the nonprofits.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I, too, would pay

Any questions for Ms. Cowan or

8

Mr. Yokouchi this morning, Members?

9

thank you very much for providing us with a current

10

status of the Center's situation.

11

McLaughlin?

12

MR. McLAUGHLIN:

Seeing none,

Mr. Sean

Aloha, my name is Sean McLaughlin.

I'm

Chair Hokama,

13

with Akaku Maui Community Television.

14

members of the Committee, I just want -- since I was

15

here, I just wanted to say I know that you all want

16

to fund the worthy requests that are coming before

17

you.

18

And so my appeal to you is please take care

19

of yourselves during this process and take a little

20

time this weekend to get -- to make sure that you're

21

well as you review all of this because it must be

22

very stressful to deal with this, I can imagine.

23

But I did want to share one -- a particular

24

thing about Akaku as a reminder to you.

25

the nature of the operation and what we do as a
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media enterprise that was established by the State,

2

Akaku's board meetings are open public meetings.
We abide by the Sunshine Laws.

3

We post our

4

meetings.

5

community, and I just think that that's an important

6

thing for you to know about us as you review the way

7

that you fund and support different operations.
So that's a -- that's an aspect of our

8
9

We are open and accountable to the

business that I know that you appreciate the

10

administrative burdens of that and also the

11

connection that it gives you to the community when

12

you have open records and open accountable

13

processes.

14

here, and we share that same thing for our board,

15

which is a 14 -- a 15-member board.

It is an important aspect of what you do

Fourteen of the members are appointed by the

16

17

State and so that gives us a different kind of

18

accountability in the community, and I just wanted

19

to make sure you're aware of that.
So thank you for this opportunity, and good

20

21

luck in your very difficult work here.

22

I am available for questions either now or anytime.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Aloha.

And

Any questions for

24

Mr. McLaughlin this morning, Members?

25

thank you very much for being here with us, Sean.
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Okay, is there anyone else that would like to

1

2

present testimony before the Budget and Finance

3

Committee?

4

testimony for today's portion of the meeting is

5

closed.

Come forward.

.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

6

7

Okay, seeing none,

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, you have a handout from the Budget

8

and Finance Staff, which is the Chair's

9

consideration for today.
11m not sure if you want a few minutes and

10
11

that the Chair will consider granting in the form of

12

a short recess to review it, or if youlre ready to

13

get down to the numbers.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Comments?

Mr. Kane?

Mr. Chair, perhaps you can summarize

15

for us what -- I mean, because youlre -- youlre

16

showing a lot of zeroes and -- and lump -- lump

17

summing so if you can perhaps summarize for us

18

and -- that would help us.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

What you see before you is numbers in the

20

funds that are placed within Office of the Mayor,

21

which also includes the Economic Development Program

22

and Grants.

23

You will also see there are numbers in the

24

Department of Housing and Human Concerns.

25

also see there are numbers as it relates to Office
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1

of Management, as well as Department of Liquor

2

Control.
In the areas that you see some lump sums and

3
4

zeroes for all of the line requests under Grants,

5

one of my considerations was that we would think of

6

a -- the way that the Grants Review Program was set

7

up.

8
9

That program was set up by ordinance whereby
we provide a pot of appropriations.

Then by members

10

of the community, they review each request and

11

allocate from that total amount X amount of dollars.

12

It appears through the years that while that

13

pot continues to be growing in requests, continuous

14

line items keep adding, whereby as I presented to

15

you, the number of just what we have in the -- that

16

has normally been State and Federal functions

17

continues to grow at a large number, whereby we're

18

looking at approximately what was it, Staff, $6

19

million, $5 million?

20

And so one idea is for us to say that we will

21

allocate X amount of dollars, we can look at the

22

grants, grantees' requests, and then say that these

23

grantees will be able to go to the Administration,

24

and the administrator would take from that pot and

25

allocate out those resources.
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That may be one way for the Administration to

2

do its responsibility, knowing the day-to-day

3

changes of the finances or accounting and better

4

administer a tight budget.

5

I present to you.

6

But that's an idea that

You will also see that one idea that I have

7

presented for you in consideration for you to think

8

about -- and again, you may propose other things for

9

Monday, that I have looked at going back to the 2003

10

levels of funding, as well as adding a caveat of a

11

reduction by 10 percent.

12

And these are some of the proposals that you

13

see presented to you in the Chair's handout this

14

morning.

15

starting point.

16

And again, it just presents for you a

I'm not asking you to make your decision on

17

whether or not

18

at this point, so nothing is final and binding to

19

this Committee.

and you know we do bring consensus

20

But I need to have you focus as best you can,

21

and this is my way of making you look at cutting and

22

not adding.

23

work on the numbers, let us work on the numbers.

24
25

So saying that, if you guys ready to

If you feel you need a few minutes to go
through the details of the handout, the Chair will
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also honor that request.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Kane.
Just one question for information.

5

The -- or for clarification.

6

don't see this showing so maybe you can help me

7

understand.

or I

I believe we had Monnie Gay come in and

8
9

Are we showing

provided us with some revisions to some of the grant

10

disbursements.

And although she listed some request

11

for additions, there were also some where she stated

12

that they were requesting subtractions as well.

13

we reflecting that anywhere?

Are

As an example, I thought the -- and I may be

14
15

mistaken so please correct me if I'm wrong, but as

16

an example, on page 8, the

17

Slaughterhouse, I thought that they requested that

18

that be deleted.

the Molokai

So I wanted to find out if there's anyplace

19
20

that we would have revised numbers of the

21

recommendations that were given to us through the

22

meetings of some -- of some take-aways.

23

MS. KOLLER:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair?
Tamara.
These numbers, the document that you have, is
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tied in with the budget ordinance.

All of --

2

everything that we work off of in Committee goes

3

back to the original budget ordinance.
Now, we realize that there were a lot of

4

In fact,

in the Economic Development

5

changes.

6

Grants, there were several iterations that we were

7

at the point -- you know, I'm not even sure which is

8

the final iteration.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MS. KOLLER:

Yeah, yeah.

Those are items that the Committee can look

11

at, and there can be adjustments.

12

a starting point.

13

Committee wants to do, if there's certain ones that

14

you want line itemed, you could do that.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And

Okay.

And this was just

and through whatever the

Thank -- thank you, Mr. Chair.

16

I just wanted that clarification and -- so we can

17

all recollect some of the places where they said

18

cut, and that would help us cut without having to

19

think about it because it was already recommended by

20

the Administration for that cut.

21

that clarification.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, Members.

So thank you for

This is what I would

23

consider.

One end of the spectrum, there are those

24

of you that have already made comments that you

25

would wish to look at past and prove any grantees to
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1

receive line item consideration.

2

I have no problem.

And as long as we balance

3

at the end, I'm open to the whole perimeter of how

4

we do it, but we need to balance it regardless at

5

the end.

6

recess to go through what the Chair has presented to

7

you?

8

So are you ready, or you want a short

Mr. Molina?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

recess.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chairman, I'd prefer a short

Okay, thank you
Mr. Chair?

Ms. Tavares.
I actually would prefer that we

14

don't even go through it.

15

become part of the proposal that we work on over the

16

weekend, and we could save some time here.

17

I think that this could

What I did with the -- with the grants is I

18

put them all in categories, regardless of where they

19

were in the budget.

20

And just to back up some figures, what I got

21

from the so-called Community Partnership Grants,

22

there were almost a million dollars in line item

23

grants in addition to the category 1.890 million.

24

And I think when you go back and forth and

25

try to figure out which ones are in OED, which ones
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are in Public Works, which ones here or there, it

2

gets a little hectic to figure it out.
But I have put them in categories and -- so

3
4

that, you know, I could take a look at where our

5

our revenues or where our resources are being

6

devoted.

7

hand it out to the members just so you have a

8

reference point.

And I could get that prepared and

and

I know that we had one list that was prepared

9

10

I think by Mr. Pontanilla's office that listed all

11

the grants according to where they are in the

12

departments.
So what I did was took this list and listed

13
14

the grants by categories, like all child care

15

programs, all environmental protection programs,

16

things like that.
And I'd be happy to share that -- that now,

17
18

but I'm -- I don't want to see us dickering between

19

and among grants because I think it should be part

20

of our

21

our packages.
And then at Monday or whenever we go through

22

it, then we can

23

and compromise or convince each other about the ones

24

that -- where we differ.

25

can see which ones we agree on

Because I just see us -- you know, it will
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1

take us all day to cover this line -- grant by

2

grant.

3
4

5

And I offer that for --

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I appreciate your comments.

Mr. Pontanilla, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I agree with what

6

Charmaine just mentioned.

7

us some time today, give us a head start as far as

8

trying to create a budget and looking at a $13

9

million reduction.

10
11
12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

You know, that would save

Mr. Nishiki, any

comments?
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

I just wanted to ask Charmaine, do

13

you have a sum total of the grants that you so call

14

divided into different areas, or is it done already?

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I didn't add them up by

16

categories.

17

I think Michele -- did Michele sum up?

I finally quit at 10:30 last night, but

18

Yeah, I think on the one where it was handed

19

out, I think that Michele Yoshimura did the listing

20

by which department they were in.

21

notes that Fiscal Year 04 is -- this can't be right,

22

or maybe it is, 20,416,754 and --

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

was 17,595,918.

And she

she

In grants?
In grants.

And Fiscal Year 03 it

I believe you have this handout in
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2

your materials, too, somewhere.
And then there's another 2.8 million that

3

were -- anyway, that was -- that was on

4

transportation stuff.

5

the big ticket items like all the transportation,

6

all the -- you know, every grant that's given, not

7

just the Human Concerns Grant.

8

So

9

us with a

But it

it -- it includes

and I think Mr. Hokama's staff provided
the breakdown of what it was in 03 and

10

a 10 percent reduction and a 20 percent reduction,

11

what that would equate to.

12

information also.

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So we have that

All right.
Which was very helpful, by the

15

way, in -- in trying to look at this whole grant

16

picture.

17

believe that one of the things that hopefully will

18

occur in this -- in this upcoming year is a real

19

hard look at grants, period, and to look at ways

20

that we have better control over what's happening

21

with grants.

And I think -- I mean, not think.

I

--

I

22

And like you mentioned, Mr. Chair, that there

23

are certain ones that maybe we should say, you know,

24

we're going to at a certain level -- I think

25

somebody suggested a level, at a certain level that
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1

those grants be line items; and under that level,

2

they go to grants review.

3

And, you know, I think that's something to

4

consider, and I would like to, you know, allow the

5

Administration the opportunity to work on that

6

during the year and then present us a package for

7

next year's budget where we can actually see, you

8

know, grants by categories, perhaps, and then

9

determine which department is going to do it.

10

I mean, for example, if I may, under Culture

11

and the Arts and Human Concerns, there is a

12

category, and it has $180,000 for those Culture and

13

Arts Grants.

14

Then in Economic Development, there's also a

15

Culture and Arts, and it used to be Culture, Arts,

16

and Sports before, but they changed the title to

17

Culture and Arts this year for a hundred thousand

18

dollars.

19

and Arts.

20

So that's a total of $280,000 for Culture

And then there are the line items.

21

you add all the line items up, the

22

in excess of an additional $600,000.

23

And if

the number is

So we have to -- you know, to me, we should

24

be looking at okay, what amount of money do we want

25

to dedicate to this sort of -- or this category of
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1

activity, and then what kinds of activities do we

2

want?
You know, it's almost like thinking about in

3
4

a way the way the State does things with what they

5

call -- what was it, RFS?

6

service thing, where you determine what your

7

qualifications are, what program you want to see.
You have those out there, and people will bid

8
9

No, POS, purchase of

on it.

You submit a proposal to meet that goal or

10

objective, rather than the way it is now, we have a

11

category, and anybody who has an idea or a program

12

to meet that category's qualification submits a

13

grant.

14

what it is that happens in -- in the

15

community in the -- in the grant area.

16

And it's almost like the community drives

Whereas the professionals supposedly that are

17

in Human Concerns, for example, can say, you know,

18

we have a need in homeless -- in the homeless

19

category or self-sufficiency category, and what

20

we're trying to do is find a program that will do

21

one, two, three, four, five things.

22

You print that up, that becomes your bid

23

document like, and people will respond to that

24

request.

25

than what's going on now, as far as how grants are

So it's a little bit different thinking
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distributed.
We've done it in like the youth centers.

2

3

have a youth center grant that's 1 point whatever

4

million, 1.3 million, and they know what the

5

requirements are.

6

running youth centers apply to that money.

We

And all the people interested in

So in -- in one case, we do it; but in the

7

8

other cases, it's -- it's real broad.

And I think

9

that, you know, we're at a point now where we need

10

to take a look at where we're focusing our

11

resources.

12

and growing.

We can't just keep growing and growing

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

Mr. Chair, getting back --

-- sorry, that was a long
-- yeah, no, I

I appreciate what

16

you just said, and I -- I'm sure that other members

17

also.

18

in regards to, you know, possibilities as to where,

19

this one here and then the other types of areas we

20

can look at, can -- can I get an explanation again?

21

But Mr. Chair, getting down to your pass out

You talking about reduce grants to 90 percent

22

of Fiscal Year 03 level and then at 10 percent and

23

then 20 percent.

24

realize as far as cuts?

25

million and 6 million are cuts?

Is that figure there what we would
That -- that -- that 4
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

That is what you would relieve from the

2

general fund.

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

5

If you just went across the board and

took it?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Right, right.

And again, you know, some

6

members have already stated they do not feel an

7

across the board consideration is -- would be fair

8

or appropriate, and that's fine.

9

that because it was a way for us to show the dollar

10

impact.

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I just present

Right.

So if you do it that way as an option at 10

13

percent, we reduce it by $4.6 million,

14

approximately.

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

Just -- just -- I just want to

16

speak right now from the point of you know,

17

everybody's got their little program, okay.

18

And if you're able to muster five votes, then

19

you get to keep your program.

20

to look at cuts, as you stated in this area, and I

21

don't know where members are, but your objections

22

may be because you want your program, and you

23

believe in it.

24
25

So now if we're going

And what it's going to amount to, and I -I -- I -- I hate to say this, but if members think
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1

they can work in that peaceful manner without

2

offending anybody, and you know in the back here who

3

you getting hit by and what you getting in your

4

telephone calls and who you belong to.

5

I -- I -- I -- I just find that it's going to

6

be really hard to pit project against project and

7

line item and not line item.

8

take on it.

But that's just my

9

Maybe as -- what has been prefaced here or

10

shown to us by the Chairman, I don't know if it's

11

easier because you're not looking at projects to do

12

this type of

13

going to cut or if we're going to cut at all, but

14

for me, personally, this is easier.

15

way of cutting if you

if you

Charmaine wants to categorize it, but, you

16

know, I don't know if that's easier either because

17

then you're going to go oh, this category really

18

needs it and this doesn't.

19

And I don't know by coming to that point,

20

Charmaine, what you -- what you're driving at, other

21

than maybe to show us in what categories the

22

different grants are going to.

23

Anyway, that's my take.

But I -- you know,

24

I'll be interested to see what Charmaine has.

25

you, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

And I would say Mr. Nishiki,

2

even if you -- you do choose to support the across

3

the board option, any decision by this Committee is

4

not easy.

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

8
9

Yes.

Okay.

Because no matter what, we will

impact someone.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Well, you -- you -- you pointed us in

the right direction.

You're saying cuts so I'd like

10

to go right across and see what we're going to end

11

up with and then from there, figure out what else

12

we've got left.
And usually left means raising of taxes and

13
14

-- and raising of fees.

15

know.

16

survive.

My

And, you know, I don't

my -- my take is -- government can
We can survive.

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We will.

18

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

We will.

I don't know how deep you want to go.

Mr. Mateo, your opportunity.
Thank -- thank you, Mr. Chair.

I--

21

I'd like to thank Member Tavares for offering

22

this -- her suggestion because I believe it gives us

23

greater opportunity to play with the numbers, to

24

play with the percentages, and get a better

25

perspective of the impact of -- of actually seeing
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1

the numbers, what 10 percent will come out being for

2

each one of the -- the grant requestors.

3

It will give us the -- a better opportunity

4

to really take a look at the -- the total impact.

5

While each of our departments are being told to cut,

6

I think it only appropriate that it extends across

7

the board.
And I think it just gives me the

8
9

in the

next couple of days to take a better -- get a better

10

picture of how much the cuts will come out looking

11

and whether or not for some programs the cut, you

12

know, could be drastic enough to really consider

13

whether or not it's

14

worth it, you know.

the funding is going to be

15

If they're not able to do their programs,

16

then I guess we all got to take a better look at

17

each of the requests.

18

grants review process really works.

But you know, the -- the

And that took the politics out of a lot of

19

20

the applicants coming in.

21

larger segment of the requests that reach us would

22

kind of be reverted back to a grants review process

23

to make it, you know, competitive in that arena

24

instead of this one.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

And I really wish that a

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Ms. Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I guess the ultimate question

2

comes down even if there's a pot of money, who's

3

going to make the decision as to what percentages in

4

the pot go to what programs or if the

5

Administration's going to make that decision or

6

we're going to make that decision.

7

Having been a nonprofit executive director, I

8

think I look at it perhaps very differently than

9

other people because I've been in the trenches.

10

When you look at it, you have a general sense

11

of your budget and where it's going to go and what

12

it's going to mean to the people that you serve.

13

We have -- and -- and we did adopt to cuts

14

that we received in our program at the youth center.

15

It's very painful a lot of times to know that you

16

cannot serve the people who are depending on you.

17

And I think that for me, the flexibility is a

18

big issue.

19

opportunity to let's say monitor the grants that it

20

gives out, I think that it can respond much more

21

quickly to emergencies or shift money.

22

If the Administration makes or takes the

I know that before, you know, they came back

23

let's say with the Help Program or whatever, but

24

there's sometimes critical programs that desperately

25

need funding.

And it may mean temporarily, you
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know, working with organizations to bolster them in

2

some other way.

3

You know, sometimes it means combining

4

organizations, but I -- I don't think personally

5

that we and -- in the County Council have the

6

ability to monitor, as the way that Mr. Mateo has

7

said, perhaps all the grants.

8
9

The Grants Review Committee has done a really
good job.

And actually, what we're doing by looking

10

at all these things and line iteming, I realize that

11

it's almost like we're becoming the Grants Review

12

Committee.

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that's what is so difficult

15

because we should be not focusing on those things.

16

We should be basically giving enough room and enough

17

faith in the Administration to put the resources

18

where they're going to be most critically needed.

19

I know it means to some people abdicating

20

that responsibility or looking like well, we don't

21

want to make the hard decision.

22

the hard decision.

23

I'm happy to make

But I think at this point in time, facing the

24

budget constraints that we have,

I don't want to get

25

caught off guard because we have much more serious
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2

problems.
And not to say that the nonprofit problems

3

aren't serious.

They are serious.

But I think that

4

giving that ability to the Administration to really

5

take a hard look in much the way the Grants Review

6

Committee is going to have to take a hard look and

7

saying okay, guys, you know, we're going to cut you

8

guys a little bit, but more of the money has to go

9

over to this program, that, to me, is a judgment

10

call, but it's an Administrative decision.

As

11

administrator of a nonprofit, I had to make that

12

decision, and it wasn't easy.

13

I think what we're facing is not easy.

14

prefer to leave the funding right where it is

15

because with the costs increasing the way they have

16

for many of the programs, they're -- they're

17

actually having to maybe even jeopardize their

18

programs.

19

I

And if we believe that those programs are

20

worthy, I -- I mean, I don't want to face that.

21

Personally myself, just as an individual, Human

22

Services, those areas, the grants are the area where

23

we most need to bolster right now because those

24

those are the areas that you end up, you know,

25

seeing all the people during times of crisis going
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to.

2

So if that is our support network, you know,

3

we just cut a little puka, you know, in the safety

4

net.

5

not make the 10 percent cut, that's my preference,

6

and find where we could economize in other ways.

I really would prefer to look at what we had,

7

But I do support the idea of giving a pot of

8

money to the Administration to be able to react and

9

at least plan for those services which they deem

10

absolutely essential to the operations of this

11

County.

12

So I'm conflicted in the way that I'm looking

13

at it, but I'm also looking at it realistically,

14

that to add on new programs or expansions at this

15

point is going to be really difficult.

16

And I have made suggestions to other people

17

that came forward where they had new -- excuse me,

18

new programs this year to say well, maybe we can

19

work with what's out there or maybe you can network

20

with someone else.

21

So I'm trying as an individual to play my

22

part in making this work, but I know it's going to

23

be tough for all of us and so we're going to have to

24

make that call.

25

But I personally support your direction of
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giving that flexibility to the Administration and

2

having the Administration really sit down and have

3

the time to go through each one of those areas so

4

that they can manage the resources in -- in an

5

efficient but also in the most effective way.

6

thank you for giving me this much time.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

Thank you.

And

Mr. Kane?

Admittedly, Mr. Chair, lIm not

prepared to respond without doing the inner -- the

10

inner search here and -- and how welre going to

11

proceed.
I appreciate you coming forward and -- and

12
13

setting the tone and making, you know, the reality

14

very clear that welre -- welre -- you know, welre

15

faced with some tough times and -- and when we get

16

faced with this, understanding the social fabric of

17

our community and the role that many of the people

18

who will -- will be impacted by the proposal.
And again, itls just a proposal so people

19
20

shouldnlt be panicking.

21

should understand that this is the stark realities

22

of it.

23

lIm not prepared to provide any alternative at this

24

point.

25

They -- you know, they just

So Illl leave it at that, Mr. Chair.

I--

I appreciate you allowing us to come forward
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on Monday and, you know, provide.

2

frankly,

3

cut part but

4

in opening, I have to admit that I may be different

5

from some of the other members.

I'm

And -- and quite

I'm not only going to look at the
because I have to again, as I stated

I think what the social services out there

6
7

are doing is -- is critical for that social fabric

8

here.

9

what we can do and also look at the revenue side

10

again because I think we just need to really dig

11

hard on the revenue side, and we need to do it with

12

the tools that we have.

13

And I'm going to do my best to figure out

And although Finance has represented that the

14

computer system isn't ready for subcategories, then

15

we need to look at some interim measures that can be

16

applied.

17

then great.

And if I'm able to come up with something,

18

If not, well, I can tell you that I'll be

19

trying during this -- this weekend of reflection

20

for -- for personal reasons and family reasons as

21

well as, you know, to continue doing our job.

22

So thank you for the challenge, Mr. Chair.

23

mean, you put it in perspective, and I look forward

24

for all of us coming together on it.

25

And I -- and I appreciate Mr. Nishiki making

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

I

48

BF 4/17/03

1

the comments early.

2

don't want to get into the -

-

the drag out.

and we may have to, but I think in the

And

3

You know, that is tough, and we

- as

4

spirit of it, we just want to try keep it as

5

smooth and

6

know, entering into any personal rounds as far as

7

our personal preferences for -- for programs.

8

you, Mr. Chairman.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

- -

-

and as clean as possible without, you

Thank you.

10

questions?

11

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank

Mr. Carroll, any comments,

Just that I appreciate the Chair

12

proposing that we have the time over the weekend to

13

go over this and come back with recommendations.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I would add that, you know,

15

maybe for some of the comments that I've heard this

16

morning, we may want to look at adding measurements

17

or standards to help us achieve moving forward.

18

We've heard for more than one budget cycle

19

why the new computer we've invested millions of

20

dollars in is not ready to take on additional tasks,

21

that if it would help the -- the system, as well as

22

the overall improvement of revenues and accounting,

23

well, we may just need to say, you know, we -- we

24

have a standard.

25

You will get this system ready by X date.
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And we want to know why you -- if you cannot meet

2

it, why you didn't meet it, but I'm tired of hearing

3

why we cannot do things.
And so hearing this, I will take a short

4
5

recess, Members, because I then

6

for your comments this morning.

and I thank you

Obviously, you are already doing your soul

7
8

searching, and you're touching base with your

9

constituency.

And of course, I'm sure your own

10

families are giving their dollar's worth of input to

11

you because I get it just as much as everyone else

12

as your Chairman.
But let me present another thing for your

13
14

consideration.

15

you look at the program -- and I -- I say that of

16

all what is before you.

17

only saying this about the grants, but you need to

18

look at operations and the programs that we, as the

19

departments, provide.

20

When you look at the grants and when

Don't -- you know, I'm not

Are you going to view it as what we have

21

available drives those program and grants, or do you

22

want those program and grants to drive the money?

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Okay.

Right.
That's a big -- that's a

philosophical thing.

You have to look at how you
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want to fund things.

2

And once you come to a basis of what of those

3

two philosophies you feel to move forward, then it

4

may help you in your decision-making as we go

5

through this rough and tough road.

6

food for thought, we'll stand in recess until 10:30.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

And with that

Mr. Chairman?

Yeah, Ms. Tavares.
Before you -- today's the day

we're supposed to get the certification?

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That is correct.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Have we

We will
received anything yet?

We have not received any communication, and

16

we will have Staff continually check to ensure that

17

the Administration complies with the requirements.

18

So we will await that.
And as soon as this Committee's made aware,

19
20

the Chair is happy to share that information with

21

all members.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23
24
25

Thank you.
EXPENDITURES

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

We will stand in recess until 10:30.

(Gavel) .
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RECESS:

10:14 a.m.

2

RECONVENE:

10:35 a.m.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel).

Okay.

Thank you, Members.

We

4

will start.

5

what I would do is we'll go down the list.

6

where we have already made comments about requesting

7

-- the grants area, we'll -- we'll skip that, but

8

other areas where we can get consensus, we will do

9

so and then move forward.
Okay.

10

We're on the morning's attachment so
And

On the first page of the morning

11

handout we have Administration, Office of the Mayor.

12

The request is for 2,005,442.

13

a reduction of 800,000 that was mentioned to this

14

Committee as funds that the Administration had put

15

in for Council's personal considerations of

16

initiatives or programs.

We have already made

We have already deleted that.

17

So that is

18

reduced by $800,000.

19

would reduce that further by 144,674, leaving a net

20

appropriation of 1,060,768.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

If we look at the 03 level, we

Any objections?

No objections.
Mr. Chair?

Ms. Johnson.
I just had a question.

Yes, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

With the -- both refunding level

2

under the Mayor's Administrative Programs, with the

3

changes that were made in the Charter through the

4

election, is there anything in there that let's say

5

by Charter would have existed now that did not exist

6

prior to those changes being made?

7
8

9
10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

In my estimation as your Chair, not in

that -- not in that area.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Not in that area.

Okay, thank

you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, the Chair will ask once again any

12

objections at this time for the revision and the

13

working number of 1,060,768?

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay, thank you.

We'll move on.

Under

16

Office of the Mayor's Grants, the Chair has heard

17

comments, and we will skip that area.
Staff, page 8.

18

Thank you.

Let's go to page

19

8.

20

E-Tech program.

21

Chair is recommending -- if you would look at the

22

4/7/03 response under page 8.

23

On the bottom of page 8, Members, we have the
The request was for $435,000.

The

The Chair is recommending a reduction to the

24

GASB 34 Project cutting $185,000, leaving a amount

25

of $100,000.

And it's the Chair's understanding
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1

that the majority of the work that needed to be done

2

has been done regarding this area.
I don't believe we need two employees to do

3
4

this job.

5

reduce it and still allow enough funds for that

6

person that will be responsible to finish it up, as

7

well as report back to the Council if desire.

8

also looking at --

9

MS. KOLLER:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

MS. KOLLER:

And therefore, my recommendation is to

-- Mr. Chair?
Yes.
Just for clarification, that's not the

12

salaries.

13

Administration Program.

14

So it's not salary dollars.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The salaries are up in the -- the
This was for the project.

Okay, this is on page 9 of that -- of 10

16

from that April 7.

17

Cost and Revenue Accounting, and we have

18

Mr. Taguchi.

19

GASB consideration?

20

I'm

That's the area that shows AP-2,

Do you have questions regarding the

Further under CS-3, it is the Chair's

21

recommendation that this can be deferred, and

22

therefore a reduction of $50,000.

23

a net appropriation of $200,000 for this program

24

area.

25

Any objections?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

That would leave

Ms. Johnson?

Mr. Chair, I just have a question
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1

again.

2

Parks Permitting, could I just have a further

3

explanation of that area?

4

In -- when you say Delay Community Centers,

CHAIR HOKAMA:

If you look at the -- the sheet that was

5

provided in the Mayor's -- Administration's

6

response?

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8
9

Okay.

I'll -- I'll get that for

the --- this is for the -- for additional

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

modules, data conversion, and licensing.

11

purpose that's stated.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

costs.

That's the

Okay.

And that was their anticipated Phase II
Objections, Members?

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay, thank you.

We'll move forward.

Page

17

9.

18

Concerns.

19

the Staff, and we have made the

20

here, on some of the grants that I believe were

21

lumped under the Mayor's Office because of lateness

22

of submittal, we have shifted those to the more

23

appropriate departments.

24
25

Okay, under page 9, we have Housing and Human
We have -- one thing I had -- I had asked
some adjustments

I think there was one for Human Concerns.
shifted it there.

We had another one for Public
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Works so we shifted it there regarding -- I think

2

the Public Works one was the rent, rent request for

3

veterans.

4

that the Staff has already done by directive of the

5

Chair.

Yeah, so you will see those revisions

6

Okay, the Housing and Human Concerns has a

7

whole bunch of grant requests, and the Chair will

8

ask that you leave that alone at this time upon

9

hearing the morning comments.
Move on to page 12, Department of Management.

10
11

Under Management Program, the request is for

12

893,696.

13

revision.

The Chair has made three areas of

Of course we heard, and it is to my dismay,

14
15

I'm not speaking for you -- for you -- for anyone

16

but myself as your Chair, that the Chief Technology

17

Officer that we have supported to provide countywide

18

assistance was deemed not essential or necessary to

19

move this program forward.

20

$85,000.

So I am reducing this by

21

If you look at the 4/7/03 response from the

22

Department of Management, transportation costs was

23

to be moved to the Department of Transportation, and

24

therefore I'm recommending a reduction of the

25

60,942.
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There was a duplication, a request for the

1

2

Maui Veterans Program and so you see a reduction of

3

$5,000.

4

asking you to consider at this time as the working

5

number is 742,754.

Therefore, the net appropriation that I am

6

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections?

No objections.

Okay, thank you.

Under Funding for Tech

8

Ready System, the Mayor has requested a

9

consideration of 350,000.

10

I've placed this, continue to recommend no

11

changes.

And again, the Chair's position is that we

12

will continue to support former Mayor, as well as

13

the private sector, to continue to fund-raise, and

14

that this amount, if anything, should be reduced as

15

those fund-raising efforts continue to collect

16

contributions and it then gets funneled through the

17

County system for payment back to the financing

18

company.

19

And I believe we have already made a

20

statement by our previous Council action on how we

21

felt about Project East and the results of benefits

22

to our young people in our school programs.

23

objections to keeping 350 as the working number?

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No

No objections.

Thank you.

Under Department of Management,
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1

Transportation Program Expansion, the request is

2

$600,000.

3

for a net appropriation of zero.

I'm recommending deleting this $600,000

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay, thank you.

Under the MIS or

6

Management Information Systems Program, the Mayor's

7

request was for $1,909,786.

8

expansion positions, as well as expansion equipment.

There was request for

The details you will find on 11-6 and 11-8.

9

10

At this point in time, the Chair's recommending

11

reduction of $72,072 in expansion positions, as well

12

as those associated equipment for expansion in the

13

amount of 9,600, leaving a net appropriation in the

14

amount of 1,828,114.

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay, thank you.

Under the Department of

17

Liquor Control -- and again, Members, we are aware

18

that the Department of Liquor Control is basically a

19

self-supporting program.

20

The licensees pay for their administrative

21

costs, as well as the -- their enforcement program

22

and that any surplus or carry-over as acquired by

23

their State legislation gets returned back to those

24

licensees.

25

Liquor Control Program has requested
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1

1,385,096.

2

recommending any changes.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

4

MS. KOLLER:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

MS. KOLLER:

Therefore, the Chair at this time is not
Any objections?

No objections.

Mr. Chair?
Yes, Tamara.
I just want to point out that Liquor, when

7

they came in, they did ask for some additional

8

positions, and the note at the right was we weren't

9

sure if they had sufficient revenue.
But I've just been notified that what they

10
11

did is they adjusted their operations costs in order

12

to add the two people if the Committee wishes to --

13

to authorize those two additional E/Ps.

14
15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And that keeps the fees to the

licensees at the current level also?

16

MS. KOLLER:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

At the -- at the current level, right.
Okay.

Members, any comments at this time?

18

Again, we're working by consensus, and I believe the

19

Department did request two Liquor Control Officers

20

II positions for expansion.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

Ms. Tavares?

Does that mean that their

22

their net appropriation is the same as far as the

23

1.385?

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Staff, are you able to answer that, or do

we need to go and secure information?
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1

2

get that information for Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Then also, the following

3

entry would be the administrative overhead charge?

4

Would that change because now there's personnel --

5

two additional personnel involved?

6

need to recalculate that or -- or check it.

7

MR. TAGUCHI:

We

we'll check on that.

I guess they

And also, the

8

Department of Liquor Control provided additional

9

information in the form of statistics, which is in

10

their annual report of 2002 for the Committee, and

11

we'll be distributing that to you.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, I had asked the Staff to ensure one,

13

what was the case load increase.

I wanted something

14

quantifiable to have information for you, as well as

15

I believe in their submittal to this Committee that

16

they had requested that they wanted to, I guess,

17

change their mode of operations to have two Liquor

18

Control Officers enter or respond instead of having

19

the one individual, which is the current practice.
So I asked for some statistics, as well as

20
21

then what is the role of -- or have they been denied

22

the assistance of the police department if they felt

23

they were entering into an unsafe situation.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

So we will await that information that has

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808)

524-2090

INC.

60

BF 4/17/03

1

been requested back for the Committee.

2

done with the morning handout, Members, so thank you

3

very much.
One thing I did wanted to

4

Okay, we are

want to say

5

before we return to

I believe we were on fire

6

yesterday, Members, was that for those of you that

7

are - - and again, you need to one, decide if you

8

want to make your proposal or not for next week.
And if you do, I would appreciate that you

9

10

would turn it in to the Staff as soon as possible so

11

we can get those copies prepared for other members'

12

consideration.

13

They've

we've already will make them work
we will be working again

14

last weekend, and we'll

15

this weekend so we will be here.

16

it prepared by Saturday, give it to us on Saturday.

17

If you have it prepared by Sunday, give it to us on

18

Sunday.

19

And so if you have

Ms. Tavares?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So Chair, is the intention then

20

going to be that -- that big spreadsheet with each

21

member's proposals listed on it, or will we get

22

separate proposals?

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

You know, if we do it by spreadsheet, it's

24

going to take longer for

25

so more than likely, we're going to need to convene

for us to prepare it and
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1

on Monday and

2

style I guess is the right way to look at it.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Right.

And so if that's your preference, then I

5

would say you will more than likely know that the

6

Chair will take a recess, and I will just at that

7

recess around the time required to delay the end of

8

that working day.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

MS. KOLLER:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MS. KOLLER:

Okay.

Mr. Chair?
Tamara?
If I can just interject.

In order for the

13

Committee not to waste time, you know, because

14

you're going to be running out of days next week, is

15

if the members can get something to us on Sunday --

16

by Sunday afternoon, we'll work Sunday evening to

17

get things together.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Shall we e-mail it to you

in -- in the formats that we have?

20

MS. KOLLER:

You can e-mail it.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

MS. KOLLER:

Okay.

And that

and we can access it that way.

23

That would make it a lot easier if we have an

24

e-mail.

25

the hard copy, too.

But if not, you know, we can work off of
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1
2

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Because each of us has that

spreadsheet, right?
MS. KOLLER:

Right, the spreadsheet was given to all of

4

the EAs for use.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay, thank you for that.

Any -- any other

7

questions regarding this area since we1re on it at

8

this time?

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair?

Yes, ma1am.
On

on what -- your direction to

12

us was to cut the

13

account for 13.5 million shortfall?

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16
17

or find how we1re going to

That is correct.
We can do this with cuts and with

revenue or cuts only?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

I prefer it you look at cuts first; and if

18

you can only balance it by adding revenue, then I

19

will take that as

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

23
24
25

as a consideration.
Okay, thank you.

I hope no one comes with just 13.5 million

increase in revenues, though.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Thirteen five means no property tax

increases?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, that means that more than likely, 13.5,
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1

in my rough estimation, would equate to a 12 percent

2

increase.

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Huh?

If you don't cut 13.5, then we're going to

5

need to add that to revenue generation.

6

that might be about a 12 percent tax increase.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I think

Chair?

Yes.
If we do cut and, you know, our

10

cut doesn't corne out to 13 point whatever, $5

11

million, we corne out like to a figure of $7 million,

12

as part of the exercise, can we look into preceding

13

revenues summary?

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, that will be part of the -- the

15

option.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We cannot hear.

Mr. Pontanilla's comment to you, Members,

18

was that if he's only able to propose $7 million in

19

cuts, can he then propose the balance of 6.5

20

million in -- in the form of revenue generation

21

consideration, and I would say yes.

22

Ms. Johnson?

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

In terms of the -- some of the

24

adjustments and the figures that have already been

25

made and, you know, we've been going along, CIP
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1

would reduce overhead, you know, those kinds of

2

things, all of those decreases that have already

3

taken place, do we have any idea where that leaves

4

us right now?
Because obviously, it was -- if it was 13.5

5

6

at the beginning, it's not 13.5 now.

7

even after we've done all this?

8
9

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Or is it 13.5

The CIP, so we have an

understanding, Members, the CIP reductions you made
only affects the bond, okay.
We still need to work on the general fund

11

12

requirements.

13

right now, on what available cash or cash we will

14

have to appropriate.

15

running total.

16

MR. TAGUCHI:

And that -- that is the key area

And so we'll try and get a

Lance, comment?

I just wanted to remind the members that

17

when we get the certified rules from real property

18

tax, that is a number that we are required to

19

utilize unless this body changes real property tax

20

rates.

21

The fact that we may collect a little bit

22

over historically cannot really be used in this

23

instance to balance, yeah.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair, my question basically

before was that -- you know, and I realize that the
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1

CIP is bond.

That's not a problem.

2

have to pay the interest and the carrying charges

3

with cash, is that not correct, from the general

4

fund?

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But we still

Yes.
So what I'm saying is that if we

7

reduced -- you know, when the figures came down,

8

obviously it was with greater interest carrying

9

charges from when it is now, and I just wondered if

10

we had some idea of what that reduction was or if

11

that's already just included in our figures that we

12

have on our sheets?

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think Staff has some information from

14

Finance because Finance -- because we authorize

15

borrowing, it doesn't mean they go out and borrow

16

the money as soon as the new fiscal year starts.

17

So they have a calculation on how much new

18

money that will go out and then they -- then they

19

calculate the principal interest payments on the new

20

money that's floated.

21

MS. KOLLER:

So Tamara, any comment?

The amount that is in the calculations for

22

the debt service and the interest is based on a $10

23

million new issuance of bonds.

24
25

And we do half-year convention for the first
year so there may be need to be minor adjustment;
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1

but until we get everything final, that shouldn't be

2

material.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

It can get complicated, Members, but we

4

will work through it.

5

regarding the submittal deadline?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay, any other questions
Mr. Molina?

Yeah, Chairman, again just

7

clarification again on the 13 and a half million

8

dollars in cuts you'd like from the

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I've asked

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

general fund.

-- that you look at cutting $13.5 million

from the operations expense side.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

If there is

your proposal is zero cuts

15

and you need to look at generating $13.5 million

16

more, then that would equate, without me punching it

17

out on my calculator, and I -- I think I threw out

18

what I thought was a -- would be then a 12 percent

19

property tax increase.

20
21
22
23

24
25

So if we don't make these cuts, it would have
to be -- we're looking at 12 percent -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

we'll need to make up the

revenue somewhere.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Somewhere, right.

balance the budget.

Because we need to

We -- we cannot have an
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1

unbalanced budget when we conclude our

2

deliberations.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah.

So just following up on what

4

Mr. Nishiki had asked.

5

the 13 and a half million, then we wouldn't be

6

looking at a property tax increase?

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So if we make these cuts,

It depends again on the level of serves

8

here.

I had put in a 4.5, which that's how I came

9

to the 18, to restore some other departments that we

10

knew that in the Mayor's proposal eliminated

11

operations.

12

Like Prosecuting Attorneys, Members,

13

remember, I believe the Mayor gave them zero dollars

14

for operations.

15

asking the guy to mow the grass without the mower.

And my comment was that's like

16

So if you feel that they need money to

17

operate and you restore those 03 numbers, you

18

looking at a need for $18 million.

19

Okay.

And again, we heard the Mayor's

20

comments that, you know, he perceives us to give him

21

mixed signals.

22

any decisions.

23

Hard to -- in making -- us making

So if you want to take that comment into

24

account and -- and again, since he has said that if

25

we will honor his proposal of cuts, then that's why
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1

you are seeing me going down and cutting down those

2

trees.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

Okay, Members, if you'll go to yesterday's

5

handout, I believe we went through under Operating

6

Budget, Council Services where we made a reduction.

7

We left the Clerk's Office alone.

8

Defense alone.

We left Civil

We left Department of Corporation alone,

9

10

which means that on those administrative

11

departments, if the Mayor made the cuts, those cuts

12

stand.

13

Okay, and we went on to the Department of

14

Finance.

15

that we are still awaiting information.

16

We had some areas of consensus and areas

And the Budget Director, Mr. Agsalog, did

17

come down during recess and indicated to us that the

18

Mayor is requesting to present some revised

19

information to us at 1:30, and this is your Chair's

20

response and position that I've asked Mr. Agsalog to

21

take back to the Mayor.

22

I informed the Director that my parameters to

23

allow the Mayor to return at 1:30 if he wishes to

24

give his verbal as with the written supporting

25

documentation for his revised numbers will be

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

BF 4/17/03

69

1

granted if he will main

2

members to ask questions for clarification.

3

remain here to allow the

I will not allow the -- any debate, but I

4

will allow questions for clarification.

If the

5

Mayor can agree to that, then my comments to

6

Mr. Agsalog is that I would be more than happy to

7

grant that courtesy request.

8

If he chooses to just present and leave, then

9

I just prefer him to submit in writing his revisions

10

and allow the members to then work through the

11

Budget Director, or whoever else the Mayor chooses

12

to represent him, to communicate between us and --

13

and himself.

14

And so we are awaiting the Mayor's decision

15

on whether or not he will work within the framework

16

as I have provided him.

17

meeting.

18

That is at a possible 1:30

Okay, we are on the Department of Fire and

19

Public Safety.

I believe -- is that -- is that

20

where we need to start off, Staff?

21

beginning, right?

At the

22

Okay, at this time, Members, the Division of

23

Department of Fire and Public Safety Administration

24

and Maintenance Program.

25

820,872 as presented by the Mayor.

The request was for
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1

You have heard the comments by the -- the

2

chief and his representatives in each division area

3

or program area.

4

number?

Objections?

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

No objections.

Okay, thank you.

The Training Program, the

request was for 517,871.

8

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

At this time, 820,872, working

No objections.

Any change -- any objections to maintaining

this working number?

11

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

No objections.

Okay.

Fire Rescue Operations Program, the

13

request is for 14,133,373.

14

to be the working number?

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections for this

No objections.

Under Fire Prevention, the number is

17

470,766.

18

number?

Any objections to this being the working

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson?
Again, I just want to understand.

22

You know, I know we heard from the Department during

23

the course of this whole presentation by each one of

24

the departments.

25

I think particularly because we're looking at
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1

core services, there were some concerns expressed on

2

the part of not only the Department but some of the

3

members here about the ability for the Department to

4

continue on with the recommendations that were made

5

under its strategic plan.

6

So my concern is that, you know, we're doing

7

planning, we're asking people to work more

8

efficiently, effectively.

9

expanded areas of this County that are now needing a

10
11

You're looking at

lot of services.
And particularly in this area, I'm -- I'm

12

concerned, Mr. Chair.

13

Lahaina alone, if we continue to build in our

14

agriculture areas, it is spreading our services so

15

thin that what will end up happening is somebody's

16

house is going to burn down, and somebody's going to

17

get sued.

18

And I'll tell you that in

I don't want that somebody to be the County

19

of Maui, but I had someone call my office last night

20

complaining about the fact that he lives in a rural

21

area and by God, if his house burns down, you know,

22

he expects fire services.

23

He is arguing about lines that are in now

24

that he's willing to put in let's say the larger

25

line or whatever to get the fire flow, but the line
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1

coming in to his hydrant, for example, isn't going

2

to give him that pressure.
Now, I'm looking at this and saying where do

3
4

we stand as a Council?

Where do we stand as -- as a

5

body in support of our fire rescue operations, our

6

needs of the community.
And as we look at the demand on the services,

7
8

those services will be increasingly spread more

9

thinly and particularly because this is a core

10

service.
I -- I just want to know where the other

11
12

members and, you know, where we stand as a body in

13

supporting the fire department in trying to meet

14

those needs.

15

way about police, you know, many other areas.

Same thing on

on -- I feel the same

So I just want to know where we're going to

16
17

go with this.

If we're adopting this and saying

18

that we're not going to go along or we're going to

19

just temporarily halt their progression of that

20

particular strategic plan implementation, then I

21

just personally would like to know that.
And if it -- if that's what's reflected in

22

23

the budget, that's what we want to do, then I just

24

want to be sure that this is going to be something

25

that

that we can agree to.
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So if everyone feels that this is agreeable

1

2

and that we can, you know, move in this direction

3

without compromising, you know, the health and

4

safety of our citizens, that's great.
But also on the revenue side, I think that

5

6

particularly for services like this, that we're

7

going to have to look at increasing revenues in

8

those areas that are now demanding those services.
So that's my 2 cents, but -- I mean, I'll go

9
10

along with the figure for the time being, but I just

11

want us to really examine where we're going here.

12

That's why I've said what I've said.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And again, Ms. Johnson, in the Chair asking

14

this to be the working number and asking for

15

consensus, I will look forward to your proposal

16

because you still have that opportunity to make

17

adjustments and -- and tell us why you would

18

recommend a different number.

19

And if you feel strongly about the strategies

20

plan that the Department did prepare and he's using

21

as a basis for their program requirements, you know,

22

that can be part of your proposal.

23

I have no problem with -- with you presenting

24

the areas that you feel the numbers need to be

25

adjusted whichever way, you know, either increase or
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you know, you can present it in

1

decrease, but

2

your proposal to the Committee.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

8
9

10
11

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Kane, you had a question, comment?
No.

Okay.

Anyone else?

Thank you.

Staff, do

we have another area we can move forward on?
MS. KOLLER:

Mr. Chair, we don't have that document

printed out at this point so if you want to take a
short break, we can get something and then -CHAIR HOKAMA:

okay.

Does the members -- we can do it

12

couple way.

We can take an earlier lunch break

13

and -- and then return?

14

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Or we can -Take a long lunch break.
Take a long lunch break.

18

you go.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

1:30.

20

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

1:30.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

There

Or 1:00.

You folks want to break till 1:30?
Yeah, yeah.
Got work to do.

We all have work to do.

I agree.
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1

will stand in recess until 1:30 p.m.

2

RECESS:

11:12 a.m.

3

RECONVENE:

1:40 p.m.

4

(Gavel).

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel) .

We shall bring the Budget and

5

Finance meeting back to order for the 17th of April,

6

2003.

7

to come and give you an update on his revenues and

8

expenditures numbers so we thank Mr. Arakawa for

9

being here who is joined by the Budget Director,

10
11

This afternoon, Mayor Arakawa has requested

Mr. Agsalog.
They have presented in written form a handout

12

that I believe each of you have a copy of.

13

therefore, the Mayor will be -- at this time, share

14

some comments with the Committee.

15
16

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Thank you very much.

And

Mr. Mayor.

Committee Chair

Hokama, Council members, good afternoon.

17

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

18

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Good afternoon.

We -- we're coming into the -- the final

19

days of working on the budget.

20

passed down a budget to you that was balanced at the

21

time with our best estimates.

22

And early on, we

Over time, numbers have changed as is

23

expected as they always do.

We've prepared another

24

proposal for you that is balanced, as far as income

25

and expenditures, and that is before you right now
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for your consideration.
The last time I was here, I think couple days

3

ago, we told you that we would go back to our

4

departments, and we would be working with our

5

departments to prioritize CIP projects so that we

6

could come down on the bond float as was requested

7

by the Committee Chair.

8

You had a range that you wanted to work in,

9

and we were -- we were able to, and you have in

10

front of you, some of the prioritized -- how we

11

prioritized the CIP projects, and we have cut that

12

amount dramatically so that we -- I believe we are

13

in the range that you were asking for.

14

The income and expenditures, again we went

15

through with each of the departments.

16

through the grants.

17

'em there so that you would have a balanced budget

18

if you were to follow this and pass it today.

19

We went

We took some cuts out.

We put

All of the efforts that we're making I know

20

are -- you know, they're very difficult because

21

working with different agencies and essentially the

22

life blood of all the agencies and their missions

23

are to do the best they possibly can for the

24

community.

25

And there's not one department that I have
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1

that doesn't believe that without -- with additional

2

funds,

3

really want to do the best job possible.

4

they couldn't do a better job, and they

But the realities of the income and our level

5

is that we have to make some adjustments so we've

6

put off some of the items for later on where we

7

thought we could.

8

list, and our Budget Director will explain how we

9

went about getting this priority and the list down

10
11

And again, we have a prioritized

to where we can work.
Now, there are a number of good reasons why

12

we also believe that this comes -- will come out

13

that we needed to work with the bond float to make

14

sure we don't get too high.

15

Understand that in the very near future, we

16

have a major project that's going to be in front of

17

us that is not currently in this year's budget, and

18

that is to make a decision on what we're going to do

19

with this building that we're in.

20

The building, as you know, we're having

21

problems right now with pieces of the wall falling

22

down onto the area below, and this is pretty much

23

around the entire building.

24
25

We've had an assessment done.

We are going

to be presenting you this year with some options,
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1

and we're also open to any suggestions that you have

2

to enhance those options.

3

We are also working -- that -- that will

4

probably be a 50 to $60 million project, okay.

5

I'm -- I'm saying this tongue in cheek at this point

6

because it's a -- it's a rough estimate on some

7

assumptions.

8
9

And

Now, we'll have all -- we'll have the
opportunity to discuss that later.

In trying to

10

protect our bond rating and the amount of bonds we

11

should float, we have to be very careful that we

12

don't overspend, and we are trying to adjust so that

13

we don't have that overspending.

14

In a lot of the areas, we've asked you to

15

increase or consider increasing some of the fees

16

that we have to try and get the fees up to where

17

they'll self-support the agency that they're

18

spending the money, and there are some adjustments

19

that we have to make so we'll look at that.

20

There's an area that we're raising very

21

reluctantly.

22

that is in the area of home trash collection.

23

recommending a increase of up to $12 from 6.

24
25

We don't really like to do this, and
We're

The cost of that is about 18, and we still
won't be at a self-sufficient level.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

But if you

BF 4/17/03

79

1

were to recommend much higher than that, I believe

2

the community would be very, very upset.

3

trying to raise it somewhat and do it in stages.

4

So we're

In what we have recommended, the fee

5

increases, the cutbacks, what you have before you is

6

a balanced budget, okay.

7

right now, it would be legally balanced income

8

versus expenditure, and the threshold of bond float

9

to be where you'd want it so that we could protect

10
11

If you were to pass that

our bond rating.
The questions, if you have any questions, our

12

Budget Director, our Finance Director, and staff

13

will be here to answer the questions on the numbers.

14

Now, the numbers were derived, and you can

15

ask them how they were derived, but you've had the

16

opportunity to be able to work with everyone of our

17

departments and to interview everyone of our

18

departments to ask questions to your heart's

19

content, and we've I think been very cooperative in

20

trying to give you the best information.

21

understand that until just yesterday, we

22

didn't know what was going to happen to the TAT.

23

And legislature has finally,

24

set in stone yet, but I believe at this point, it's

25

reasonable to assume we're going to be keeping the

I believe, and it's not
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1

TAT pretty much the way it was.
So they -- there's -- seems that the new

2

3

proposal to float a sales tax is very unlikely this

4

year.

5

and the real property tax numbers being solidified,

6

I believe our estimates now are a lot closer to what

7

is reality.

8

9

So that having solidified some of the numbers

And again, I, you know, would like to say
this has been a period that we all have to

10

understand you have to adjust.

11

become more real, the closer we get, the better the

12

predictions.

13

As the numbers

At the end of the -- at the end of this

14

budgeting session, we will have made the best guess

15

for the time that we have to analyze, and all the

16

numbers will change again as time goes on and we

17

start working.

18

So for this time, this period, I believe we

19

have given you a budget.

20

that you want to ask me, I do have another

21

appointment shortly so I -- I'm going to leave my

22

directors here to answer any of the specific number

23

questions and justification questions.

24
25

If you have any questions

But just as I came down Monday, you know, and
I do want to clarify, I came down Monday on my own
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to -- to be able to explain some of this to you.

2

I wasn't scheduled to be here Monday, and I

3

had appointments that I had to go to.

So I've moved

4

my appointments around so that I could come down

5

here and then I had to go back and meet those

6

appointments, just as I have today.

7

But I did want to give you an opportunity to

8

have some discussion and to know where we're coming

9

from.

10

11

So if anybody has any questions, I'd be happy

to entertain them.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you very much, Mayor Arakawa.

Before

12

we start this afternoon's meeting, normally we do

13

receive our certification of real property through

14

the Office of the County Clerk.

15

status as to when you believe that number will be

16

made available for us, please?

17

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Can you give us a

Well, I signed the document to transmit it

18

down to you this morning.

I believe that Keith can

19

give you an exact number.

And if you want, I'm

20

willing to go upstairs and see where that copy is

21

because

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

what should be transmitted to you.
Okay.

Well, I thank you very much,

23

Mr. Mayor.

Okay.

And again, thank you for

24

providing us your comments on revenues, as well as

25

expenditures.
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1

Members, as I have indicated earlier prior to

2

the midday break, I had asked the Mayor that if you

3

come down, that I would allow questions for

4

clarification and that again, after that, we will do

5

our responsibilities in reviewing and making our --

6

our decisions on specific program areas.
Any questions for clarification on what the

7

8

Mayor has just made comment on and has presented to

9

you for consideration?

10

Okay, if there are no

questions for clarification --

11

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

-- yeah, I -- I have a question.

Mr. Nishiki?
I want to turn to -- this isn't

14

marked here -- the third page, and it has to do with

15

carry-over savings.

16

review this today, what was handed to us?

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I -- are we going to go --

You can ask questions on the submittal, and

18

we are then going to move -- continue to move on,

19

as -- as I have scheduled the rest of the

20

departments' review.

21
22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay, then I'll just ask this

particular thing --

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

But if you need to --

24

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- that's important.

If you need to ask the Mayor how he arrived
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at his revised carry-over savings, I think that's a

2

question of clarification.

3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

You can

Yeah, if -- if

-- put it forward.
I understand what is being

6

represented here, you've got Mayor's budget revised

7

estimate and then you got second revised estimate.

8

And in it, I see where the carry-over savings under

9

the second revised estimate, if that is what we're

10

using.

11

MR. AGSALOG:

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

13

Mr. Chair?

CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

16

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Agsalog.
that you people are now --

-- I -- I intended to go over this step by

step, Mr. Chair

18

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

19

MR. AGSALOG:

Oh, okay.

-- if you would allow me.

20

member's question, yes, that's

21

now our revised estimate.

22
23
24
25

Is that new

estimate now 5.5 million

14

17

Help me understand.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

But to answer the
the 5,578,431 is

And to achieve this, what steps has

the Administration taken?
MR. AGSALOG:

Okay.

You want me to answer one piece like

that, Mr. Chair, or you want me to go through the
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whole thing?

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MR. AGSALOG:

Just answer the question for Mr. Nishiki.
Okay.

To achieve that new revised

4

carry-over savings, Mr. Chair, if you would look at

5

the Exhibit number 4, Exhibit number 4.

6

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Riki, if I may, the -- the explanations

7

are going to be lengthy, and welre going to go

8

through this whole thing so 11m going to

9

can I make one more comment and then 11m going to

can I

10

leave?

And if therels a question that comes up that

11

I have to come back down, then 1111 try and come

12

back down.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Mayor?

14

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

I just wanted to hit one more

15

point.

16

Central Maui for -- as a bond float out of this

17

budget.

18

I did take out $14 million and I put for

Now, when I had originally talked to the

19

Chairman, what I had told him was, you know, what I

20

was looking for is approval to negotiate with A&B

21

and with Brewer.

22

And that number was a nebulous number just to

23

allow me to negotiate with them for properties that

24

we have here.

25

back to you and ask you for approval of a bond issue

Itls not a real number until I come
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1

on it, okay.
But I do want that permission to be able to

2

3

negotiate for -- for projects and properties in this

4

area.

5

come to any kind of an agreements on would have to

6

come back to the Council for an agreement before it

7

could be approved.

So I do want to make that clear.

So we took that out because it was kind of

8
9

Again, the -- anything that we were to -- to

misleading, in that I did not want you to continue

10

to think that this was a firm number that we had

11

already negotiated anything for.

12

preliminary stages, okay.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We're in the

Thank you very much, Mr. Mayor.

Any

14

questions for Mayor Arakawa for -- on a need for

15

clarification, Members?

16

already indicated he has a need to -- to leave so we

17

thank the Mayor for his work --

18

MAYOR ARAKAWA:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, if not, he has

Thank you.
-- in presenting a second revised estimate

20

of the current situation as he views it.

21

thank you very much, Mayor.

22

Okay.

Okay,

Members, questions of clarification on

23

what is submitted.

We have the Finance Director, as

24

well as Mr. Yoshimi joining the Budget Director.

25

Any questions regarding the handout?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Kane.
This handout Exhibit 7 which was by

itself --

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

-- regarding the TAT, where did --

7

who -- who put this together?

8

there's numbers that I'm kind of confused on when

9

you have in the grants-in-aid, TAT budgeted in

10

I'm -- only because

actual numbers.

11

As an example, in 1990, which is irrelevant,

12

but just to compare, it shows 112 percent increase,

13

and yet the numbers are exactly the same and then

14

there's a place where the numbers have shown an

15

increase but they're showing a decreased number so

16

I'm -- I'm just trying to figure out where this came

17

from and -- I'll leave it at that.

18

to verify these numbers.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. AGSALOG:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MR. AGSALOG:

I'm just trying

Budget Director, if you can -Thank you, Mr. Chair.
-- provide some clarification.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

But before I

23

answer questions, I'd like to thank you, this body,

24

for allowing me to work on this budget, you know,

25

the past two days, and it really give us more
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1

opportunity to put the numbers where they belong.
To answer the member's question,

2
3

Mr. Chairman, that exhibit comes from -- came from

4

my office.

5

arrived to the calculation of our TAT tax.

It is an exhibit that shows how we

Those percents that increase, decrease, as

6
7

the member is asking, those are increase, decreases

8

from year to year, previous year to this year.

9

Those are the change in -- in numbers.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So if you see number -- let's say

it has 112 percent, that is a increase over

11

1990,

12

the 1989 actual amount, correct?

13

to read it?

14

MR. AGSALOG:

Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

That is how we are

Yes, sir.
Thank you.

I appreciate -- I --

16

that's what I was asking, if it's reading across

17

what your budgeted in the actual and the percentage

18

difference, but it's from the previous year?

19

MR. AGSALOG:

Yes, sir.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, sir.

Thank you for the clarification.

Thank you.

Okay, any other questions for

22

clarification on the submittal as presented by Mayor

23

Arakawa this afternoon?

24
25

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Mr. Nishiki?

Yeah, I want to get back to my same

question, that carry-over savings, Mr. Agsalog?
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MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chairman?

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

MR. AGSALOG:

You told us to --

Mr. Agsalog.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

To arrive to that

5

5 -- 5,578,431, Mr. Chairman, is you -- we have to

6

look at Exhibit number 3 and Exhibit number 4.

7

To walk you through, I took -- I have taken

8

the revised estimate of that carry-over savings of

9

1.7 million plus the difference between the

10

estimated collection at that time that they have

11

given that revised estimate to -- to date, the

12

estimate of collection to date, and the difference

13

of that is 1,201,831.

14

If you add those together plus the line below

15

that, deferred CIP cash fund -- funded projects,

16

those are the proposal that we would like to either

17

cancel the project totally or refund it with bond

18

this coming Fiscal Year 04.

19

together, you come up to 5,578,431.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

22

Mr. Nishiki?
I guess I didn't follow it all the

way.

23

MR. AGSALOG:

24

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

25

So you add those three

to?

Okay.
What -- what page are you referring

The Exhibit 3?
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MR. AGSALOG:

2

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

3

MR. AGSALOG:

4

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

5

MR. AGSALOG:

6

I have Exhibit 4.

Exhibit 4 is --

Yes.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

8

MR. AGSALOG:

10

From Lance Okumura?
That number over there is the number

as collected to date.

7

9

Exhibit 4.

Okay.

And also they have 1 million as penalties --

penalties and interest.

So those are collectibles.

And to add the two, you will have 106,655,977.
Looking at the estimate -- estimated revenue

11
12

when they did this revised estimate for carry-over

13

savings for the general fund, that -- that

14

collection or estimated revenue then was

15

105,454,146.

16

that particular revenue.

17

So we are to date 1,201,831 more on

So I will have to add that to the carry-over

18

savings.

19

proposed canceled or refunded projects from this

20

Fiscal Year 03, which is in the amount of

21

$2,673,600.

22

together, you come to 5,578,431.

It was estimated as 1,703,000, plus the

23

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

So you add those three numbers

Thank you.

Okay, thank you.

Members, any other

questions to Mr. Agsalog for clarification?
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2

Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

On the projects that are funded in

3

Fiscal Year 03 that you're pushing to Fiscal Year

4

04, are you going to be sending down the proper

5

budget amendment to release those funds?

6

the CIP life is not until -- it ends December 31st

7

of this year.
So if you want to recognize those as savings

8

9

Because

for Fiscal Year 04, I think you'll need to send down

10

which of those projects are and how much for each

11

one.

12

now or postponing it and removing the money, but I

13

think we have to do it formally.

14

MR. AGSALOG:

You're basically canceling out the project for

And that is right, Mr. Chairman, and I

15

have -- I intend to come down with the proper

16

amendments of how this propose will be taken up

17

probably so that we can account for it for this

18

budget session.

19

And I -- we are intending to do that.

20

just I -- I was just putting the

21

together this time.

22

It's

the numbers

But yes, and I -- I have discussed this with

23

the Chairman previously in how we're going to

24

proceed, and he told me investigate, and I have

25

asked Corp. Counsel, and it is possible to be done.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you,

Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

Any other questions for

4

clarification?

5

worksheets or additional documentation regarding

6

this information?

7

MS. KOLLER:

If not, Staff, do you need any

Mr. Chair, we would need more time to review,

8

and weld like to work with Mr. Agsalog and Finance

9

to be able to reconcile the numbers.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares?

Mr. Chair, thank you very much.

I

12

have no further questions about this budget.

13

do have is a request of you, Mr. Chair, if you would

14

consider, that you and the Staff and Mr. Agsalog and

15

the Finance Department work together or get whatever

16

needs to be done because we can do it here, but itls

17

going to take forever because we donlt have the

18

knowledge base that you folks have.

19

What I

And I think that once we can set on agreeing

20

on the revenue numbers and the countywide numbers,

21

then if you will e-mail those numbers to us in our

22

offices, then we can work from there as far as the

23

rest of the budget.

24

everybody out, rather than us hashing over line by

25

line today.

I think that will help
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1

I would agree.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think the key areas right

2

now that will help each Member with a proposal is a

3

agreed upon estimation on revenue, as well as

4

countywide -- countywide costs.

5

await your recommendation, Members.

6

any other question, comments?

7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

After that, I will
Okay.

Any--

Mr. Carroll?

What is the time line on this?

When do you think this will be completed?
I will need to consult with the Staff to

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

reconcile so we're going to take a recess shortly

11

and then I will get back to the Committee.

12

Mr. Kane?

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Generally the same question,

I'll -- I'll cross the bridge when we

14

Mr. Chair.

15

get back from a recess, and shall we proceed?

16

Because I think going into the weekend, we're

17

looking at that 13.5, possibly more, number.
And I think with what we've got now with

18

19

revised numbers, once it's worked out between --

20

worked out there, then we -- I think there's going

21

to be a modified number for us -- you know, more or

22

less, whatever it is, but it's going to be modified.
And that way, we can avoid any unnecessary

23

24

stress.

25

avoid any unnecessary stress on -- on pulling hair

Since we are in the cutting mood, we can
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on what we're looking at cutting as far as our

2

proposals.

3

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So cross that bridge when we get there.

Okay.

And then I just need to note that

5

while the Mayor has recommended no increase in

6

property tax, in his second revision, you will note

7

that he has increased fees in certain program areas

8

sizably.
So that is how he has decided to make up

9

10

revenue, okay.

11

increases in revenue generation.

12

questions at this time?

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Okay, any other

Ms. Johnson?

The certification on Exhibit 3,

that is now 111,169,248, is that correct?

15

18

So be aware that he has proposed

That is not the certified number as of yet.
It's not?

We have not received official

communication.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

That was just what I was

20

wondering, if that was the actual certification

21

so --

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And that would come -- the official

23

documents will come through the Office of the County

24

Clerk as -- when it's received and then will be

25

presented to -- to the Council members.
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1

will stand in recess for about 15 minutes.

2

you.

3

RECESS:

2:08 p.m.

4

RECONVENE:

2:36 p.m.

5

Thank

(Gavel) .

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel).

We shall bring this Committee's

6

meeting back to order.

For your Chair to be able to

7

move forward with a request I believe made by

8

Ms. Tavares in assisting you over the weekend to

9

come up with your proposals, I think we need to put

10

forward some questions to the Budget, as well as

11

Finance Department so we can get some understanding

12

and then we can get the appropriate numbers to you

13

for your own use this -- over the weekend.

14

I think one of the areas that we would need

15

to get some understanding is definitely in the areas

16

of revenues, Members, if you have questions, or are

17

you willing to stand by the Mayor's proposal to

18

increase those fee rates in the area of Residential

19

Refuge, Solid Waste FOG, as well as the Solid

20

Waste/Green Waste rate?

21

Because if you are, then obviously there will

22

be a reduction in the general fund requirements.

23

But if you don't agree with that, then we still need

24

to look at general fund increases.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane?

And I apologize, Mr. Chair.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

I didn't

BF 4/17/03

95

1

hear how you started it.

2

agree or disagree with it?

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So are you asking if we

Well, for -- for me to provide you with the

4

revenue number that would assist you, as well as be

5

able to

6

countywide cost figures in the various areas, under

7

the Revenues portion, if -- obviously, the Mayor is

8

basing it that you will agree

9

his proposal to increase fees in Solid Waste in

10

to say that we have an agreed upon

we will agree on

three areas.
If we do not agree, then the $2 million, more

11
12

or less, will need to be made up from another

13

source, including possibly real property tax

14

increase.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Kane.
11m -- 11m not in agreement within a

18

6 -- I am not in agreement with a $6 increase so

19

1111 -- 1111 leave it at that.

20

And I would prefer that we -- we work through

21

these issues and if in the end that it gets down to

22

some of the more basic decisions once we go through

23

some of the other items in the budget.

24
25

But in this case, 11m not willing to support
a $6 increase or a hundred percent increase in the
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trash collection fees at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
fees?

Okay.

Any other comment on the solid waste

Mr. Molina?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, I concur.

I will not support

a $6 increase for residential collection.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And -- and you know if we take the

7

number that is on the table for discussion as of

8

yesterday's working numbers, that is a difference of

9

$800,000 from the proposal on the floor or the table

10

by the Committee compared to the Mayor's proposal,

11

okay?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Understood.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares?
I was going to say we should use

15

our working numbers, what we agreed yesterday for

16

that and actually not -- not include anything at

17

this time for the other fees and that it be just

18

part of our packages as we balance out our

19

individual versions of the budget that we be allowed

20

to work within the Solid Waste on any other of those

21

fees and taxes.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

If there's no objections, that's how

23

we'll move forward, and the Staff will make its

24

adjustments, if any, on revenue.

25

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

Mr. Nishiki?

Being that you're -- you're
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1

right there now, this FOG rate is being asked for an

2

increase and also the green waste rate?

3

those two that I see, which is 350,000 and 64,OOO?

4
5

6
7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Are those,

As proposed by the Mayor, that is our

understanding.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Right.

And who ultimately is -- are

these -- pays for these two -- in these two areas?

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The businesses.

The -- basically, commercial.

10

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

All of it?

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

All of it.

Okay.

And this is the one that was

13

represented to us yesterday on the -- that new

14

collection of grease traps which was low?

15

And then it says here increase in 2004

16

real

are real property revenues?

17

only

those are the only three increases that

18

you've got, the residential, FOG, and green waste

19

in -- in

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. AGSALOG:

Okay.

So the

in fees?
Budget Director?
The member, Mr. Chairman, is right on this

22

proposal.

23

increases in sewer fees in the original proposal.

24

But in this proposal, yes, those are the only three

25

increases.

We also have original.

We proposed some
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3

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

That's the new -- the new -- the

new fees for revenue?
MR. AGSALOG:

Yes.

On the increase of the real property

4

tax, Mr. Chairman, it's not a rate increase.

5

just an increase as of the valuation that would be

6

certified, and I

7

will come down certified to you.

8
9
10

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

It is

I believe that's the number that

Okay.

That's the extra money that we

get when we get the clerk to give us the
certification.
And -- and -- and -- and did I hear you say,

11

12

Mr. Chairman, that if we don't get it here in the

13

residential increase, the other alternative was

14

what, cuts?

15
16
17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's it, right?

Cuts or you can look at raising other fees,

as well as the property tax.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay.

And -- and

and I -- I would

18

hope that we take that challenge up to figure out

19

how we're going to get more revenues, unless we cut.

20

Unless we do cuts.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Unless we do cuts?

That is correct, Mr. Nishiki.
Okay.

Okay.

Okay.

I think --- Mr. Chair?

Yes, Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Can I ask because

so the fees

2

that are mentioned in this document we got today,

3

those are the only fees?

4

request for sewer fees and also the -- the

5

beautification fee I thought that was coming down?

So youlre abandoning the

Did the Mayor not want to raise the

6

7

beautification fee to cover the cost of this vehicle

8

storage?

9

MR. AGSALOG:

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

MR. AGSALOG:

12

Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Agsalog.
We -- we are not abandoning the original

proposed increases.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

MR. AGSALOG:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

MR. AGSALOG:

17

18
19

20

budget.

Those are
oh, these are additional --

-- these are additional
Okay.

-- as we work together in formulating this
These are on top of what we have proposed.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, thank you for that

clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

I think one area that I

21

need to ask because live -- live read the memo from

22

Corporation Counsel.

23

copy on whether or not we felt that the

24

Administration complied with the Charter regarding

25

the probable shortage of revenues.

lim sure all of you have that
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1

And so one of the ideas is we may need to

2

language the ordinance by category that they fit is

3

a shortage or a zero because I don't agree with the

4

way the memorandum presented there, you look at the

5

total asset and -- and that if the number then

6

doesn't cover at the end, that there was a probable

7

shortage, okay.
So I will have that sent to our independent

8

9

auditors for comment, and I will have our legal

10

Staff review that also because I am not in agreement

11

of what was presented in that memorandum.

12

Secondly, I think we need to know from the

13

Budget and Finance Directors that this is addressing

14

the potential shortfalls for the Fiscal Year 2004

15

requests.
I think this Committee needs to know how you

16

17

plan to address the current 2003 situation because

18

again, how you manage this will impact our

19

consideration for 04.

20

MR. AGSALOG:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Agsalog.
Since we have started this Administration

23

and no -- seeing the financial status that we are

24

in, we have instituted a -- an informal I would say

25

hiring freeze.
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1

I have not signed many positions to be filled

2

since then, and that's the way we are trying to

3

address this current budget at the moment.

4

you are filling a position that is very urgent or

5

very essential, you have to come and see me because

6

I -- it will stay in my office for a while.

7
8

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So if

So how would that impact the request for

positions in the 04 budget?
MR. AGSALOG:

The request for new positions that are

10

requested by departments, I -- I think it was on the

11

Finance that has the most request.

12

Liquor, they have their own fund to pay for their

13

spendings.
I do not hold any position if the fund is

14
15

self-sufficient.

16

fund,

17

position, Mr. Chair.

18

With regards to

But if it is funded by general

I will hold travel, as well as funding the

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, I understand about the special funds.

19

With this proposed carry-over for the 04 under

20

General Funds, how does this impact the current year

21

situation with interfund transfers and the need for

22

the subsidy by the general fund to areas of either

23

Solid Waste or Sewer or Highway?

24

efforts to address those areas?

25

MR. AGSALOG:

What are your

It is my understanding, Mr. Chair, that the
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1

interfund transfer, as far as the overhead, they are

2

calculated by percentage of their salaries.

3

So should the salary calculation is lower,

4

the overhead transfer -- actual overhead transfer

5

will be lower also.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

MR. AGSALOG:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

What about operations?
The question again, Mr. Chair?
With the situation that has -- that we're

aware of and your proposal to address move --

10

shifting the general fund savings to next year

11

budget proposal for 04, we would like to know how it

12

impacts this year's interfund transfers requirements

13

from the general fund to continue to subsidize those

14

specialized programs, whether it be in Highways,

15

Sewer, Solid Waste under Operations?

16

comment about overhead.

17

MR. AGSALOG:

You made your

What about operations?

My understanding, Mr. Chairman, the -- only

18

the Solid -- Solid -- Solid Waste and Sewer that is

19

being subsidized this current fiscal year from the

20

general fund.

21

And any expenditures as far as purchasing for

22

those divisions, if the funding is coming from the

23

general fund, they have to justify it before I sign

24

it right now.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So I'm sure we'll have those comments

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/03

103

1

supported by the third quarter report that we will

2

be receiving shortly?

3

MR. AGSALOG:

I would -- I would hope so, Mr. Chairman,

4

because I -- I tried to minimize spending between

5

January 2nd till now when I seen where we are in, in

6

our financial.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

CAFR done?

8

9

And when can this body expect to have the

MR. AGSALOG:

Can I have Mr. -- Finance Director answer

that, Mr. Chair?

10
11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

MR. REGAN:

Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, we are currently working on the

13

CAFR, and we are projecting that the coffer should

14

be completed in -- in audited form no later than May

15

30th.
Of this month.

16

? :

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that, Finance Director.

We

18

need to ask you some questions so that we can get a

19

good feel on this one.

20

If on Exhibit 4, Mr. Agsalog, you share with

21

us total collections to date, total balance due,

22

which includes the penalties and interest.

23

So help me understand because if I'm looking

24

at your -- the submittal by the Mayor on his

25

three-paged submission to us, under Carry-over
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1

Savings, you estimate collection remaining for this

2

year at $1 million.

3

difference between what I see there and what you

4

show on Exhibit 4.

5

MR. AGSALOG:

So help me understand the

It's my understanding, Mr. Chair, that the

6

current billing of penalties and interest is over a

7

million dollars.

8

conservatively estimated $1 million to incorporate

9

on this particular carry-over.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I

Conservatively estimate

I

I know you -- you made just a million

11

dollar for

12

wouldn't you use the number that you show us for

13

Exhibit 4?

14

MR. REGAN:

15

MR. AGSALOG:

for your estimated collection.

Why

The 5 million number?
Mr. Chair, my understanding is that's an

16

old -- a lot of those are old uncollectible -- old

17

collectibles, receivables, and estimating 1 million

18

I think is a conservative amount to incorporate in

19

our recommended proposal, our proposal.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

So when you say it's the old collectibles,

21

you mean we carry that on the books year, after

22

year, after year when we do the closing?

23

MR. REGAN:

Mr. Chair, if I'm looking at the correct

24

exhibit, we're looking at the exhibit that states

25

total collections to date at 105 million and then
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under that, it says total balance due of 5

2

million

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's right.

4

MR. REGAN:

approximately?

What we're looking at there

5

are delinquent taxes that are owed to the County of

6

Maui.

7

that in particular, but what Director Agsalog has

8

done is he estimated that of that 5 million of which

9

we've just sent out not too long ago interim

I'm not sure exactly what the aging is on

he is anticipating a

10

delinquency billings, we

11

very conservative amount of being received of

12

that

13

million dollars.

that interim delinquency billing of about a

Now, that, I think, is a very conservative

14
15

estimate.

We're probably going to end up collecting

16

more than that million dollars, but that's basically

17

what that

18

Mr. Chair.

what those numbers represent,

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

24
25

Interesting.

Okay.

Questions, Members?

I got a question.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Mr. Regan, what is our action

plan as far as trying to collect that $5 million?
MR. REGAN:

Well, actually, one of the things that's a

very positive thing for the County of Maui is that
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any time that we have delinquent tax bills, we will

2

always get paid.

3

get paid for its real property tax.

The County will never, never not

4

We will collect it one way or another,

5

whether that's through, you know, putting a lien on

6

the property or actually going out and taking the

7

property away to force of sale, basically a

8

foreclosure, and -- and -- you know, to recover

9

those moneys.
So when you ask what the action plan is,

10
11

that's basically what the ultimate action plan will

12

be.

13

bad bullies, I guess, you know, through the County

14

so what we're trying to do is give people the

15

opportunity to in fact pay their bills, which is why

16

we do these interim delinquency billings, you know.

of course, we don't want to be known as the big

But ultimately, the action plan will be to

17
18

take the property and satisfy the debt owed to the

19

County.

20

three-year -- you know, it takes about three years

21

to complete that cycle.

22
23

24
25

Usually, it's -- I think it's about a

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So that $1 million represent 20

percent?
MR. REGAN:

Yes.

Which I think is a fairly conservative

estimate on Danny's part so I -- I feel comfortable
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with that number.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

5

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

Any other questions by the members?

Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Hokama.

6

Mr. Regan, just a general question.

Does the

7

government have a policy where if they can collect

8

their balance and -- you know, from that delinquent

9

client, they ever consider waiving penalties and

10

interest if they get the principal in a reasonable

11

amount of time?

12

MR. REGAN:

I believe, and I -- I'd have to ask Traci to

13

correct me if I'm wrong, but in terms of the

14

penalties and interest, I believe that the Director

15

of Finance may waive penalties and interest.
And I'm not too sure on that, but I'd have to

16

17

ask Corporation Counsel to verify that statement.

18

Is that a correct statement?

19

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair?

Corporation Counsel.
Actually, what happens normally is

22

by law -- by State Law, real property taxes are a

23

paramount lien on the property that attach

24

automatically by statute.

25

So what normally happens is if a person
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1

doesn't pay their real property taxes, they're

2

probably not paying their mortgage.

3

usually the banks that end up foreclosing on the

4

property.

And the

it's

And then when the property is sold at the

5

6

foreclosure sale, because our lien comes before any

7

other lien, including mortgages, we get paid first.
So that's how come, you know, Keith was

8

9

saying is that -- that we normally get paid, and in

10

that amount is included taxes and interest so we

11

don't waive them.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

Okay.

We don't.

Okay, thank you.

Other questions by the members?

Ms. Tavares?

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

MR. REGAN:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

I'm (inaudible).

19

to EKO Systems, remember, and there's a supposedly

20

$400,000 shortfall or something like that.

21

how are you -- you attempting to handle that in this

22

year's budget?

23

MR. REGAN:

I'll wait for Mr. Regan.

I'm sorry.
Yesterday we were talking -- yeah,
We were talking about a contract

How

Well, actually, that -- it's interesting you

24

ask that question.

25

with a gentleman from Solid Waste who's involved in

I spoke very briefly yesterday
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1

the accounting process of that particular

2

involving that particular contract.

3

And really, it's a -- it's an issue that

4

needs to be brought up I think with Solid Waste in

5

terms of how they're going to fund that because

6

again, it's -- it's through Public Works.

7

really not through Finance.
The only thing that's through Finance is we

8
9

It's

hold the contract, we sign the contract, and we make

10

sure that we pay the bills when it's submitted to

11

us.
But in terms of how we're going to go about

12
13

paying for that, I would have to argue that we

14

should have Director Agaran down here explaining how

15

they're going to fund that.

16

Finance's purview so --

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

I'm not sure if that's

So maybe it's more for the

Budget Director then?

19

MR. REGAN:

Possibly, yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

comments?

22

looking for cash now to -- to pay this contract.

23

mean, we can't be not paying our bills, can we?

24

MR. AGSALOG:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

Danny, you have any

Because it seems like you should be

Mr. Chair?
Mr. Agsalog.
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1

MR. AGSALOG:

Thank you for the question, and it's like I

2

need any more question like that.

3

looking for ways to do it.

But anyway, I am

4

I don't have the answer at the moment because

5

it just came about most -- the most recent, I think,

6

weeks for me since I've been working with this

7

budget.

8

aware of it, and I think my hair is going gray so

9

fast.

10

But that particular issue I have just been

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, because that's one of the

11

things that if we're going to intend to rectify this

12

or correct it or whatever, that's money that's going

13

to come from Fiscal Year 03 budget.

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's right.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And so that -- you know, the --

16

the more moneys that are taken from the 03 budget,

17

the less the carry-over savings is for the 04 budget

18

estimate.
And, you know, I -- I think we heard you or

19
20

the Mayor come down earlier saying how he's asked

21

the departments to, you know, curtail spending

22

and

23

moneys for in this last quarter in an effort to try

24

to save money and build up the carry-over savings.

25

and be very frugal on what they're expending

I mean, that's what we've heard I think in
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this room.

2

that are going to be due or are due in the Fiscal

3

Year 03, they should be taken care of and not pushed

4

over as a -- as a liability for Fiscal Year 04 --

5

04.

6

MR. AGSALOG:

And when you've got these current bills

And the member is right.

We are looking at

7

a way to take care of all those liabilities that

8

occur this

9

budget.

this fiscal year on this fiscal year

I'm happy to tell you that we have been

10
11

trying to monitor our spending.

12

end of the day, we'll be able to cover some of

13

those.

14

I haven't been looking at the whole -- the latest

15

report that we have today.

16

And I think at the

I cannot guarantee you at the moment because

But again, we are -- I -- I assure you that

17

we are looking at spending more responsibly than

18

anyone, I would say, right now, because we

19

understand that

20

in -- with regards to we finding out this type of

21

issues that we have that we didn't know the money's

22

spent already for the coming year.

23

this practice will stop soon.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

the uncertainty of where we're at

And I hope that

So am I correct in assuming that

the boxing ring that was recently erected on the war
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memorial complex was purchased by the last

2

administration?

3

of?

4

is off?

Can you send it back since now I hear the fight
But, you know --

5

MR. AGSALOG:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

MR. AGSALOG:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

10

Is that something you can't get out

I cannot answer that
Okay.

-- Mr. Chair.
Well, eventually, any contracts the Finance

Director's going to certify that the funds are
available.
One question we have on the -- page 2 of the

11

12

three-paged handout under Grants, Mr. -- Budget

13

Director, you show us of your suggestions of

14

reductions.
I would ask on behalf of this Committee how

15
16

are you able to reduce 72,000 from MEO Infant

17

Toddler Program, as well as 20,000 from the

18

Community Work Day Program when currently both items

19

does not exist in the budget?

20

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chair, I have transmitted some

21

adjustment to Staff, I think it was last week.

22

would hope that they have those transmittals.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I

And I share this with you because we

24

need to work from the budget ordinance as presented

25

to this Committee.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/03

113

1

And if they're not in the budget ordinance,

2

it is difficult for us to view it as funds that is

3

part of the total document for us to make

4

adjustments from.
You may have made recommendations for

5
6

inclusion, but we work from the budget ordinance.

7

And so I share that with you because it's hard for

8

us to take this into consideration when in reality,

9

it doesn't exist.

10

MR. AGSALOG:

And thank you, Mr. Chairman, for letting me

11

know on that because there are two other programs I

12

think that I have discussed with Staff.

13

And in that case, you know, I would ask for

14

your guidance how to proceed on this because there

15

were no additional expenses as far as the original

16

proposed appropriation.
It's just the -- the programs moved to fund

17
18

the inadvertent -- inadvertently missed Community

19

Work Day, Enlace Hispano, and the Infant Toddler

20

also.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yesterday, I hope you had the -- the

22

Administration had the ability to listen to our

23

discussions.

24

revenues, I had made a revised estimate based on my

25

information from the industry, from our

And when we were in the area of
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1

professionals, from our leaders, regarding this

2

year's TAT consideration.

3

And the Committee has agreed to accept as my

4

working number, or our working number, to use a $16

5

million revenue estimate based on the best

6

information we have, our understanding of trends,

7

past historic information, the different situation

8

during the first Gulf War and the current situation

9

with real property situation, the new challenges

10

faced by the national economy, the SARS situation,

11

what is happening to our major trunk carriers

12

regarding American Airlines, United, Hawaiian

13

Airlines, that impact the local visitor market.

14

And so I would say the Committee will be

15

interested in how you have arrived at the $16.9

16

million figure since we had the comments from our

17

professional people that 16 million, while we

18

acknowledge to be conservative, was a very

19

reasonable number to use as of only yesterday.

20

MR. AGSALOG:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I would ask you

21

to look at my Exhibit 7.

22

think -- when I look at it, I looked at the last

23

three years of our revenue.

24
25

On -- on Exhibit 7, I

And we use -- I use it as best I can to do a
averaging -- we annualize and we -- we average the
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income previous year to do some forecasting.
And on top of that, there is a subjective

3

part where you or I and probably anyone that do

4

forecasting would look at the current situation.

5

And when I did the original one with 17.5

6

5 million, at that time, I was looking at -- at the

7

most optimum part of my forecasting.

8
9

10

11

And when I did the revised, I went back and
look at what we have.

You know, I agree with you

with the SARS and the war.
My thinking in

in that -- in a subjective

12

part, Mr. Chair, is that when there is a war and if

13

people travel, they will try to travel to Hawaii

14

we're still a part of the United States, rather than

15

going somewhere else.

16

And that -- that part of it is subjective

17

and, you know, everybody can disagree with it.

18

Again, this is an estimate of the revenue that would

19

eventually be appropriated for our projects and

20

programs.

21

I realize that it is irresponsible to

22

overestimate, but it's also equally irresponsible to

23

be too conservative to not to be able to fund

24

projects that would be important to our operation.

25

So I share that, Mr. Chair.

And again, this
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1

is my estimate in

2

followed, plus the subjective part, which is looking

3

at Maui News.

4

and all that, and the situations that we are in now.

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

in a -- there's a procedure I

They said that tourist was increasing

Well, thank you for your comments.

I think

6

we -- we need to know your rationale in how you

7

arrive at your number.
But then again, I share with the members one

8
9

information that we do -- are aware of, and I have

10

continued to hear your comments of your concern in

11

the area of real property taxation increases.
That while this year we face the increase of

12
13

up to 7.1 plus million dollars for the retirement

14

system, you are already aware by communication that

15

for the 05 budget, it would have rised to over $10.1

16

million, an addition of over $3 million more in

17

general fund revenue we are going to need to find to

18

pay for that one increased area only.
So you have my concern regarding the

19
20

revenues, Members.

21

to ask for us to move forward as we enter the

22

weekend's work requirements?

23

MR. TAGUCHI:

Staff, questions that you need

Chair Hokama, I believe maybe if we can kind

24

of -- if there is an agreement in terms of

25

carry-over savings, that is one of the numbers
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1

currently that shows an increase in carry-over

2

savings, and possibly what I can do is go through

3

the components and the members can decide or at

4

least have an understanding of what conditions

5

changed.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, Members, you heard the Staff

7

regarding carry-over savings.

And again, that means

8

that we must recognize after the Mayor sends his

9

communication of funds available that he signs off

10

of, which is in effect telling you that our CIP

11

project of last year from the general fund will no

12

longer exist.
And those improvements that we have funded as

13

communities of this

14

we believed the community

15

County needed improvement is eliminated, and those

16

improvements will not be done.

17

being asked of you.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

projects?

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And that's what is

Ms. Johnson?

Do we have a list of the CIP

We have requested that of the Budget

21

Office, that all of the projects that will be

22

eliminated by their recognition of $2.67 million of

23

general fund --

24

MR. TAGUCHI:

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- excuse me.
Pardon me?
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MR. TAGUCHI:

There is a exhibit, Exhibit number 6.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.
Okay.

I have it.

Six is the projects.

5

2004 CIP proposal.

Okay.

6

Exhibit 6, if you look at

7

letter C, 850,000.

8

$1.8 million.

9

Funds, CIP.

Thank you.

Okay, and 5 is the

What they're saying in
they call it sum,

And then sum under letter D,

That is under category 301, General

You will see quickly, Members, our

10
11

improvements for Wailuku Police Station will not be

12

done.

13

Maui Police Station will not be done.

14

Center, the funds we put forward for the sewer

15

hook-up will not be done.

16

MR. AGSALOG:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

MR. AGSALOG:

Our improvements as to move forward the South
Lahaina Civic

Mr. Chair?
Yes.
For clarification, the Exhibit 6, when it

19

says D, we are proposing to replace that with bond

20

this coming year, this Fiscal Year 04.

21
22
23

When it say C, that's the one that we
proposing to be abandoned then it wonlt be done.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So you are recommending that we

24

float the bond and pay the interest regarding this

25

project?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/03

1

119

MR. AGSALOG:

That's included in the -- in the proposed

2

your new proposed number of CIP that we have,

3

Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MR. AGSALOG:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So C is just outright elimination?

Yes, sir.
Okay.

So outright elimination that will

7

not be brought back before in the 2004 bond request

8

is the Lahaina Civic Center Sewer Hook-up Project,

9

Lahaina Civic Center Emergency Retrofit Project,

10

Kamaole III Beach Park Expansion, Kamaole I Beach

11

Park Parking Project, Lahaina Skateboard Park

12

Project, One Alii Park Improvements, Molokai, as

13

well as my Lanai Streetcourse Skate Park Project

14

will all be eliminated and not -- has -- will not be

15

in part of the 2004 consideration at this time.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Chair?

Mr. Molina.
Clarification.

Does that also

19

include the Lanai Fire Station Garage, too?

20

know if -- maybe you mentioned it.

21

get -No.

I -- I didn't

22

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Wait, that's not on the list.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It's not on the list.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah

Okay.

I don't

Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It's on the list.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

-- it is.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

8
9

It looks like it is.
It's a C.

I'm sorry.

Lanai Fire Station Garage.

It's probably because you didn't

want to see it.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well, I'm sure they're willing it to let it

rot on that island.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman?

Ms. Tavares.
I think that after seeing this

13

list now, it makes sense why we heard from people in

14

the community who are coming to us to tell us about

15

difficulties with getting moneys for the different

16

projects that were funded this year because they had

17

already been told that these funds would -- these

18

would be abandoned and not funded in -- in 04.
I talk specifically about the people who came

19

20

to talk to us about the skate park in Lahaina.

21

That --

22

MR. AGSALOG:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24
25

-- Mr. Chair?
-- that money is in this year, and

it's being abandoned?
MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chair?
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Agsalog.
The decision that abandon these projects

3

were last night so I -- he must -- that rumor, I

4

don't know where it came from, but the decision of

5

what project would be abandoned was done last night

6

in our conference, Mr. Chair.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Is that the first time that the

8

directors heard that projects from this year would

9

be considered for either canceling or abandoning?

10

Because I don't think this guy could have made this

11

up.

12

MR. AGSALOG:

Mr. Chair, I -- about four weeks ago, I was

13

asking the departments to look at programs or

14

projects that we could hold off.

15

But the decision to cancel any project was

16

just done last night.

17

rumors, but I have asked in the past to give me some

18

projects that we can hold off that they cannot do

19

because some -- it's my understanding also that

20

there are projects that they have in their books

21

that they cannot do.

22

I

I don't know where the

It's just they had so much projects that they

23

are doing, and they cannot do it anyway.

That's my

24

understanding.

25

responsibility to try to save more money, I have

So I asked them as a part of my

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/03

122

1

asked them in the past, in a -- repeatedly in a

2

Director's meeting, I have asked them for projects

3

that they could hold off or they cannot do because

4

not -- not every year they can do all the projects

5

that they've been given to or they ask.

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Ms. Johnson?

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mr. Chair, and -- and I believe

8

that in discussions that we had, too, in the

9

chambers, basically like the Emergency Center

10

Retrofit and also the Sewer Hook-up, I think that

11

was one that the Administration said they were going

12

to even -- I guess it was reinserted in this year's,

13

but that because of some of the, I guess,

14

difficulties in moving forward, that they were going

15

to put that off perhaps till the 2005 fiscal year

16

because I think that the Sewer Hook-up,

17

specifically, was one of those things.

18

And the skate park, I can only say that it

19

was probably again one of those situations where the

20

community basically at least to my knowledge was not

21

working with the Parks Department.

22

The skateboard people that came in, I had

23

asked repeatedly that they work with the Parks

24

Department or at least involve, you know, our

25

committee because it was strictly a skate -- it was
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going to be a street course.

2

And I gather what their vision and what they

3

had brought forward was not at all what we had

4

actually line itemed.

5

confusion, but I did urge the people that had wanted

6

that project to move forward.

So there was a little bit of

7

And unfortunately, for whatever reason,

8

Mr. Miyazono and their department were not evidently

9

in communication with the individuals so that

10

project just never moved anywhere.

And -- and I was

11

never contacted by anyone about it, other than just

12

my follow-up work with the former Parks

13

administrator.
So unfortunately, sometimes if you don't act,

14
15

you get left on the bottom of the pile.

16

unfortunate, but I -- I also see that finally on a

17

bright note, our lights are going in at the

18

basketball court next to the youth center.

So there

19

are some bright things to be grateful for.

Thank

20

you.

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MR. AGSALOG:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

MR. AGSALOG:

25

So that's

Thank you.
Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Agsalog.
Thank you.

And on the Lahaina Civic Center

Hook-up, Sewer Hook-up, Civic Center Emergency, I
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1

believe we have proposed that it will be done in the

2

04 budget, but I think it was

3

if I'm not mistaken, I asked for a park assessment.

if I don't

I

And I -- I think if this body would be able

4
5

to shift it to bond, I would, you know, really

6

appreciate it because I think that's a project also

7

that this body had put forth in the previous year.
Because we are canceling some of these

8
9

project, it doesn't mean that we don't approve of

10

the project, but it's just we have this limitation

11

that we have on the bond limits, and we don't have

12

the cash to do it, Mr. Chair.
And I'm sure that the coming budget year, we

13
14

will be able to address these projects as the fund

15

or revenue becomes available.

16

canceling it and we forget about it.

17

part of the priorities that the Administration would

18

look at the coming budget year.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

It's not like we
It will be

Thank you.
Mr. Chair?

Mr. Kane.
So just for clarification because

23

you've been using the word abandon.

And I took

24

abandon as it's done, it's gone, it's not going to

25

come back.
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So now you're saying something that these are

1

what you're calling here to

2

going to now be on

3

cancel or to

4

specifically to the C items, those items you're

5

saying are going to be -- put on a priority list and

6

-- and reconsidered at a future time?

7

you're saying?

8
9

MR. AGSALOG:

to go away, and I'm -- I'm referring

Is that what

Mr. Chair, the member is correct.

It's not

like -- this, as far as Fiscal Year 03, they are

10

proposed abandoned, but they will be up for

11

consideration with highest priority in the future.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Any other questions?
Yeah.

Mr. Pontanilla?
On

on those items that are

17

designated C, which now it's -- it's for future

18

projects, not going to be canceled, if the

19

Administration could somehow put the year that we

20

feel that these projects will be done so that the

21

ones that are -- need to meet some requirements like

22

the Lahaina Sewer and the Lahaina Emergency Center,

23

you know, those be identified as 05 projects and so

24

on down the line.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.
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1

MR. AGSALOG:

2

CHAIR HOKAMA:

And we can do that, Mr. Chair.
Staff, do we -- do you need anything else

3

from either Mr. Agsalog or Mr. Regan, or his

4

appropriate people?

5

MR. TAGUCHI:

Mr. Chair, I -- I just -- I just wanted to

6

reconfirm then.

So some of the projects that are on

7

here that are going to be abandoned, it is also in

8

the 04 budget as CIP program as well, is that

9

correct?
Because I see like Lahaina Civic Center Sewer

10
11

Hook-up -- well, no.

12

Emergency Retrofit, that is in the 04 Capital

13

Improvements Detail.

14

MR. AGSALOG:

Well, Lahaina Civic Center

Is that the same project?

Mr. Chair, the Staff is right, that they

15

have I think three projects here that's -- we

16

already been requesting.

17

The reason being on that is I think about two

18

months ago, three months ago, when I was requesting

19

for a -- amendments to the ordinance, the Sewer

20

Hook-up we were looking at to pay for Tech Ready at

21

that time.

22

So along the way when we putting the budget,

23

you know, we feel that this project should be

24

funded, but we wanted to fund it with I think it was

25

Park Assessment.

The Staff can correct me if I'm
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wrong on that

2

thinking that I have at that time when I was

3

assigning funding for this Fiscal Year 04

4

-- being mindful that I would have to come back to

5

you t should this project go forward

6

authorize us to cancel it in the 03 budget.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

but that -- I think that's what the

t

Staff

t

any other questions?

t

t

and mind

to ask you to

We all right

8

to be able to work for -- get the working numbers?

9

Okay.

10

Anything else t Members?

If not t I think we

would -- we are able to excuse Mr. Regan.
Do you have anything to -- that you are able

11

12

to share without straining the confines of

13

confidentiality regarding discussions with the bond

14

our bond representatives and their view of where we

15

are financially as a County?

16

MR. REGAN:

Thank you

t

Mr. Chair.

In terms of where

17

the -- the underwriters -- are you -- is that who

18

you're referring tOt the rating agencies t sir?

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. REGAN:

t

Yes.

We've had an opportunity to kind of discuss

21

some of the -- I guess the information that's been

22

going out to the -- the press in regards to limiting

23

bond issues and whatnot.

24
25

And I guess one of the things that was
mentioned to us recently was that we need to
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1

understand that while there -- the County of Maui

2

does have a debt policy that we try to mold our

3

issuances based on, that we also need to keep in

4

mind that we have to give ourselves the flexibility

5

in the event that we need to issue additional bonds

6

with an unexpected event that may occur or for

7

instance, a -- yeah, what if we needed to build a

8

whole new building that cost $50 million, just as an

9

example.

10

So one of the things that has been in

11

discussion is this concept of flexibility.

12

think it's one that's important to keep in mind that

13

while we -- we know where we should be in terms of

14

approximate levels of debt issuance on a yearly

15

basis, we should also understand that they also

16

understand.

17

And I

There come times when we need to have the

18

flexibility built in to our system, rather than

19

being relatively rigid in terms of our issuance.

20

Of course that doesn't mean that year over

21

year we need to continuously go and increase the

22

amount of CIP projects and bonds that we're -- we're

23

issuing for projects because otherwise, we would

24

eventually run ourselves into the ground.

25

We wouldn't be able to afford the debt, and
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1

it would be unfair to place that burden on future

2

generations.

3

I think more importantly realize the importance of

4

flexibility.

So they recognize that; however, they

So that1s basically the only thing I wanted

5

6

to share in terms of the bond issue that1s been

7

discussed with the -- with the body.

8

Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Regan.

Thank you,

Okay, any other

10

questions that you need for our directors this

11

afternoon, Members?

12

much, Mr. Regan.

13

MR. REGAN:

14

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Seeing none, thank you very

We appreciate your presence here.

Thank you.
And we thank the Budget Director.

Staff,

15

are we have -- do we have a estimated time when we

16

can possibly give the members on when we may have

17

those working numbers for them?

18

tomorrow midday?

19

MR. TAGUCHI:

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. TAGUCHI:

Tomorrow morning,

Is that regarding revenues?
Revenues countywide.
I -- I believe we can get it tomorrow

22

morning.

Might be able to get something by this

23

evening1s session, if we can -- it might be rough

24

numbers, but taking a look at this, try to see some

25

of the -- how the estimates are calculated.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

The Chair's going to call a recess.

2

I believe we have an additional handout to prepare

3

to present to the members before we end the workings

4

of this day.

5

want to do, say 4 o'clock?

Okay, recess till what -- what do you

6

(Gavel) .

7

RECESS:

3:35 p.m.

8

RECONVENE:

4:16 p.m.

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Recess till 4:00 p.m.

We shall bring this meeting back to order.

10

Okay, Members, before we start, I will ask the

11

Staff, Committee Staff to explain what has been

12

prepared and handed out for your use.

13

please.

14

MS. KOLLER:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Tamara,

I have two documents.

15

The first one is the Committee's first pass on the

16

CIP proposal, and I just would like to explain a few

17

things.

18

The C up on the top means there's an initial

19

consensus.

20

see the description of the project, you might see

21

something with a C at the side.

22

And as you go down on the left when you

So if you have

if we had consensus, I took

23

the bold and the italics off and put the C there.

24

Now, I did make an adjustment.

25

other day, I had too much in lapse -- I had moved

If you remember the
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too much into lapse bond.

2

What I did is I took the Senior Center on --

3

under Government Facilities, I think.

4

where -- can't find it right now.

5

the Senior Center and moved it back primarily

6

into -- to bond, there.

7

lapse.

8

9

Anyway, I took

I left a little bit in

And then one other adjustment.
Wailuku

I don't know

In the

the Kahului Fire Station, that was one

10

that we had not agreed.

11

consensus on it.

12

and said they did not need that project.

13

the 50,000 and so I adjusted that.

14

There had not been

However, the Chief had called in
That was

When you look at the total bond reduction,

15

you need to also look that I -- this does not

16

include water so this is without water.

17

the 6 million in water that was in the Mayor's

18

proposal, and that gets us to our -- the number.

19

And we will make the adjustment in the other

20

schedule as we go through.

21

So you add

The second document is the document that

22

Councilmember Tavares was speaking of.

23

list that she had put into various categories.

24

Community Partnership Grants, if you notice the

25

one -- the next line down is the Grants Review
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1

Committee, and that's the amount that -- that is set

2

aside in the proposal.
I had two entries for Hui Malama.

3

I thought

4

there was one in Housing and Human Concerns, but I

5

think that is part of that Grants Review Committee,

6

and I should have deleted that line.
And please excuse if I have some typos in

7

8

that.

I did it fairly quickly, and I don't have my

9

good glasses on today.

I also added a column that

10

says Mayor Deletions, and these were the deletions

11

that were on the worksheet that we just recently got

12

from the Mayor.

13

I did not put the ones in there that are not

14

in the original proposal.

15

the ones I think Councilmember Kane had mentioned.

16

So you won't see those --

And then on the last -- the very last one was

17

the Transportation, and that was

18

waiting to get a reconciliation.

19

and I have been trading phone calls, but this is

20

going off of the original proposal.

21

I'm still
I -- Agnes Hayashi

Now, what Budget Director Agsalog was

22

speaking of is they were proposing some other

23

changes.

24

the Enlace Program and Community Work Day.

25

as the Budget Chair mentioned, we have to work off

And in the changes, they wanted to move
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of the budget ordinance.

2

And so the ones that are in here are only

3

those that were in the budget ordinance.

It does

4

not incorporate any of those changes that the

5

Economic Development Coordinator had sent in with

6

some suggested revisions.

7

So when you look at the grants, you should

8

take those communications and -- and see how they

9

fit within what you would recommend in the area.

10

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, Members, any questions on the

11

handouts as provided by Staff this afternoon?

12

with no questions, the Staff also prepared a

13

handout, and this is handout number 3 which goes

14

from pages 3 to -- did you pass them out?

15

Okay, sorry.

Okay,

No.

I'm -- I'm ahead of myself.

16

What the Chair will be recommending to you, Members,

17

is that for your consideration as you work on what

18

you would recommend to the Chair and the

19

Committee -- rest of the Committee by either over

20

the weekend but no later than first thing Monday

21

morning, the Chair's recommendation to you at this

22

time is to use the certified number as provided to

23

us this afternoon regarding the real property tax

24

numbers, take into account also their number for the

25

circuit breaker adjustment, then regarding all other
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1

revenue categories, whether it be -- including the

2

TAT, Public Sewers Company tax, I would recommend to

3

you to work from the numbers that we have reached

4

consensus as of yesterday afternoon.

5

In the area of countywide costs, the Chair at

6

this time also recommends to you to utilize the

7

numbers that we have reached by consensus.

8

9

And that would be the two major categories
that should allow you to come up with some

10

recommendations for your proposal, either to

11

maintain the number, adjust the number downwards;

12

and if you believe, justify revise the number

13

upwards.

14

Now, remember when you go upwards, you need

15

to help find additional revenues that would be

16

needed to cover that upwards adjustment.

17

So the upward adjustment can either be

18

accomplished by one, reducing somewhere else; or

19

two, increasing a revenue source either by fees --

20

rates and fees, or by the property tax mechanism.

21

Question, Members?

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane?

Yeah, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.

Do we

23

have a master produced, a master list?

24

we were working with masters with -- and we were

25

updated?
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

It was our intention to provide to you and

2

that all of the executive assistants in each office

3

should have available to be able to show you through

4

our group --

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

groupwise system how to pull up the

7

proposal or

8

down for you.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

11

Groupwise?

or the way the budget has been broken

Including all the departments and

everything is there?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

It is -- yeah, not the line items, but yes,
what we've been working from, yes,

12

the -- what

13

you have it in the system.

14

adjustments I think easier for work.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

18

And then we can make the

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson, questions?

questions?

Mr. Molina?

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah.

Mr. Mateo,

Mr. Nishiki?

So -- so you're saying that in

19

regards to what Administration has proposed to us

20

and I -- I -- I just want to look at one area, which

21

is carry-over.

22

You're saying that we're going to use that 1

23

million plus as the figure, but not that 5 million?

24
25

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think when we chatted with Staff, what

was my comments?

We utilize the Mayor's number on
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-- on carry-over?

2

MR. TAGUCHI:

3

CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

MR. TAGUCHI:

Okay.

Chair -- Chair Hokama?
Lance.
The carry-over number that is revised to

5

5.578 million, if you agree with the amounts that

6

of CIP that will be moved from cash to bond, and if

7

you agree to the abandonment or -- or not completing

8

the cash projects, then the lapse figure will be a

9

relatively solid number.

10

If you also agree

the Finance Department

11

has come forward with a new calculation of Fiscal 03

12

collections, which includes a new number which,

13

according to Finance, has been collected, and a

14

estimate of future collections between now and the

15

end of the year by Mr. Agsalog of 1 mill.

16
17
18
19
20

If the members agree with that, then the
number of 5.578 would be a solid number.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

You're going to need to make some

assumptions, Mr. Nishiki.
MR. TAGUCHI:

One -- one final comment.

In regards to the

21

calculations of both numbers, you need to understand

22

that the -- the carry-over savings is a projected

23

number.

24

between now and the end of the year that changes

25

those projections.

There are many things that could happen
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Because it's combined -- it

1

it -- it --

2

what makes that number up is a lot of different

3

things, which includes things that possibly

4

Administration could do in terms of try to restrict

5

spending and all that things, too.

6

number is a moving number.

7

or something that is easily computed.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

It's not a final number

Clarification, Mr. Chair.

One -- one second.

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

So it -- the

Mr. Nishiki?

Understanding that, Lance, but just

11

for a number is -- is -- is my concern,

12

Mr. Chairman.

13

consensus agree that that's the number we're going

14

to use for carry-over?

15

but for the budget, itself.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I mean, we're not going to by

And what he says is true,

I would say the low that we've agreed to by

17

consensus yesterday was the $1.7 million.

18

has told you that he thinks he can achieve the 5.57

19

by assuming that the Council will agree to the

20

recognition of the 2.6 million from the current

21

year's general fund CIP program.

22

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The Mayor

Right.

As well as he has indicated his belief that

24

Finance will increase its collection by another $1.2

25

million to arrive at that 57 -- 5.57.
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You already have heard my concerns that the

1
2

number that they have provided in their second

3

revision to assist the Fiscal Year 04 consideration

4

does not still yet address my concern of the current

5

year's shortfall as in regards to the general fund

6

subsidies in the special funds.

7

VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Okay, let me ask this question.

8

And -- and do you have, or does this Administration

9

have any idea on what those numbers might be --

10
11

might be?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

I mean, you -When -- when the question was proposed to

12

Mr. Agsalog and we had Director Regan also, you

13

heard their responses.

14

Again, you need to determine whether those

15

responses adequately address your confidence to

16

accept the Mayor's new revised carry-over number,

17

okay.

18

meeting, is that I recommend you use the numbers as

19

agreed upon by consensus as of yesterday.

20

My original comment, as we reconvened this

And if we are erring, you do know that it

21

will be a positive err to address the -- the

22

guaranteed increases for the 05 budget.

23

brought up that one major point of that 3 plus

24

million dollar increase in the retirement system

25

contributions.
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And I can tell you, that is from the position

1

2

that the Chair will be working from.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

6

Mr. Chairman?

Okay, Mr. Nishiki, I'm going to move to

another member.
VICE-CHAIR NISHIKI:

Yeah, I -- I -- I -- I guess -- I
that -- that's a big disparity.

I

7

guess that

8

would hate us to use that as a reason for property

9

tax increase, that's all I'm saying, if -- if -- if

10

we don't come to cutting when essentially we'll --

11

we may have those revenues.

12

know.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA:

That's the final -- you

And -- and I will say I hope you can

14

convince the Committee when we discuss it in the

15

area of the existing program requirements and

16

whether or not there's sufficient need of the

17

general fund subsidies, that we can -- you can help

18

convince us that the Chair has erred in his view of

19

this concern.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane?
Yeah, I just wanted to clarify.

When

21

-- when Lance was referring to end of year, fiscal

22

year, yeah, we talking about, so anything can happen

23

between now, which is April 17th, and June 30th

24

is

is the time frame that you were talking about

25

in

in respects to the -- the figuring of -- of
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1

that carry-over savings number proposed by the

2

Mayor.

3
4

That -- that was all.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you.

Any other questions,

Members?

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Chair?

Mr. Pontanilla.
I just want to clarify two

8

items over here as far as the numbers that we have.

9

On the Public Service Company Tax, we're going to go

10
11
12
13
14

with the 4 million 5?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

That I believe was the number that we've

agreed upon in consensus yesterday, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
services,

And on the charges for current

(inaudible)?

15

CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

we came

17

present to you the -- the number because I believe

18

we reached consensus that on the residential

19

collection fees, we agreed as a working number to

20

move that from 6 to $9 yesterday and so we will

21

calculate to see if the 9 -- is the $9 in, Tamara?

22
23
24
25

MS. KOLLER:

Charges for current services, I -- I think
I believe the Staff will be able to

Yes.

800,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

The $9, that was an increase of

And that would be 62,727,987.
Okay.

We did not include the consideration

of the $5 tipping fee at the landfill for one free
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day a week, which was not only scheduled for

2

Saturday, nor do we include a revised FOG rate for

3

the grease trap waste program to $85 a ton.

4

those two are not included in the charges for

5

current services.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So

Thank you, Chair.

And again, just so that you are

8

aware, the number for TAT as consensus by this

9

Committee as of yesterday is $16 million.

10
11

12

Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MS. KOLLER:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

-- and print it?

18

MS. KOLLER:

Okay, Tamara, if you would please.
Yes, they are.

I can transfer it.

It's in

it's in "P" right now
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

MS. KOLLER:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

If you could --

-- because we're still working.
Yeah, if you could e-mail it to

us.

23

MS. KOLLER:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

So we can pull it up ourselves and

No, it's in

19

22

Are -- are those figures

entered into the master matrix?

13

17

Yes.

I'll e-mail it.
Yeah, if you can e-mail it to us

and then we'll work off of that.
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1

MS. KOLLER:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

Okay.

continuing working point.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

6

CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

10

That as our starting point or

Ms. Tavares?

Mr. Carroll?

No, no, that's all right.

Okay, Mr. Kane?
Sorry, Mr. Chairman.

No, no, I would prefer you ask the

questions.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Just -- just clarification question,

11

that's all.

12

Mayor's proposal, if I can ask the Director, Budget

13

Director?

14
15

16

CHAIR HOKAMA:

The -- the green waste one on the

Yeah, you may ask a question for

clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

The -- the green waste

17

figure of 64,000, and I heard you earlier saying

18

this is over and above any

19

in the original proposal.

20

anything that existed

For green waste, did we have a number, or is

21

this a new -- is this something that you folks are

22

adding on as a new program?

23

apologize.

24

waste program as far as with dollar amounts.

25

MR. AGSALOG:

I'm not -- and I -- I

I'm not familiar with an existing green

Mr. Chairman, the member is asking about the
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1

existence.

2

fee.

3

amount of 64,000.

4

There is a existing one, $7 for tipping

This proposal will bring it to $15, and net

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So just for clarification, so

5

it's currently $7, and this will represent a $8

6

increase up to $15?

7

MR. AGSALOG:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

10
11

Yes, sir.
Thank you.

a -- and please, again,

And this is -- this is

I'm sorry.

This is for

commercial?
MR. AGSALOG:

Yes.

Most of the holder for green waste are

12

commercial, and they -- the -- if they don't put it

13

into the green waste, they have to pay the current

14

81.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

MR. AGSALOG:

Right.

So rather than, you know, pay the 81, they

17

go to the $7 to encourage them to recycle or do the

18

composting.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And how -- and just as a final

20

clarification.

Residential, because there's a

21

for us, anyway, an option to consider in our

22

think the Chair has proposed or something for

23

consideration for residential fee of $5, that

24

wouldn't include residential for green waste.

25

waste is free,

I

Green

and recyclables are free if you were
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to go to the landfill, all that is free?

2

MR. AGSALOG:

That's my understanding

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

MR. AGSALOG:

Yeah, okay.

-- sir, about the residential dumping.

5

Green waste or the regular waste, it's free at the

6

moment.

7

dumping, dumping I think it's free.

And even though you go to the green waste

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

MR. AGSALOG:

10
11

12
13
14

For residential?

Yes, sir.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes.

Thank you, Director.

Thank

you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Any other questions at this time?

Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, just a correction.

I know,

15

Tamara, on that sheet that has all of the grants

16

listed, that section that has Hui Malama under

17

Community Partnership Grants, that's not a double

18

entry.

19

The Hui Malama has $25,000 in the proposal

20

under Community Partnership Grants and a line item

21

of $180,000 in the Mayor's budget so it does have

22

two entries.

23

Hui Malama second one.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

MS. KOLLER:

So to -- just to add the 25,000 in the

Thank you.

Thank you for that.

Excuse me, just for clarification.
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25,000, isn't included in the 1.8?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
under HHC.

No, it's a line item, yeah, for HH

I'm sorry, I didn't make that clear

in my little thing there.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, anything else?

If not, the Chair

6

needs to take a short recess.

7

with the certified number for the real property tax.

8

So what do you think, Tamara?

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

We do have a problem

E-mail it to us?
well, we're checking it right now

I am

11

because if it is -- the attachment that -- it comes

12

with us, the front submittal does not back up each

13

other.

14

the two documents are not coordinated to achieve the

15

same number.

Or maybe -- maybe I didn't see it wrong, but

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Not in sync?

Yes, ma'am.

Okay?

Okay.
So I need to have Corp. Counsel

20

review where we are because the Charter says that we

21

will have it on or before the 19th of April.

22

19th is Saturday.

23

as Good Friday so therefore, we had anticipated that

24

we would receive it by this afternoon.

25

The

The 18th is a recognized holiday,

And if we cannot use the number as certified,
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1

then we need to see where do we go from here.

2

so we shall take a recess.

3

sufficient time for legal counsel to discuss with

4

the Budget Director and with our Staff, we shall

5

reconvene at 5:00 p.m.

6

RECESS:

4:40 p.m.

7

RECONVENE:

5:30 p.m.

8
9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

(Gavel).

Okay,

And just so that we have

(Gavel) .

We shall reconvene the Budget and

Finance meeting for the 17th of April, 2003.

Let me

10

first say I believe the Chair has been very patient

11

today.

12

responsibility and our work, and we will move

13

forward.

14

However, we will continue to do our

Saying that, Members, obviously you are aware

15

of a problem with receiving the certification of

16

real property tax as required by Charter.

17

again, the Charter did provide to the 19th, but this

18

is the last official day of work before that

19

deadline.

20

And

And so if there is noncompliance as it's

21

required by Charter, we'll allow the Office of

22

Corporation Counsel to make their determination and

23

what options or remedies must be considered and

24

whether or not official counsel action is required.

25

But that's for another time and another
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consideration.

2

Your Chair's more concern and about moving

3

on.

Therefore, it is the Chairman's position that

4

you -- at this time as the working number to utilize

5

what has been provided to you by the Mayor in his

6

second revised estimate as your working number for

7

the weekend and tell us to use as the revised

8

estimate, that number represented as the circuit

9

breaker and then we'll move forward and your -- in

10

your proposals that you prepare for recommendations

11

to be presented first thing Monday morning.
In the meantime, I believe Staff will make

12
13

available to you the revisions by -- by morning,

14

Staff?

15

Tamara, any comments, please?

MS. KOLLER:

We'll put a hard copy in your trays, and we

16

will send it bye-mail for those that have their

17

e-mail.

18

be located on the LAN in the "0" drive.

19

it over there.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA:

We will also give you the -- where it will
We'll move

Okay, any questions to the Staff regarding

21

the information they will help provide to you for

22

use?

23

Ms. Tavares?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, just to really thank the

24

Staff.

You know, again, I know people have been

25

recognizing the work that's gone into this budget by

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/03

148

1

your Committee Staff, Mr. Chair, and I -- I for one,

2

and I think I can speak for everybody, really

3

appreciate the hours and hours and the hard work

4

that they're putting in to try to get us through

5

this very difficult process.
And I know if -- if it weren't for Tamara and

6
7

Lance, we would be in a lot of deep kim chee, as

8

they say, and I just want to thank 'em for yet

9

giving up another weekend to prepare documents for

10
11

our use.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I just want to say thanks to you guys.
Thank you for your comments.

The Chair

12

obviously is much aware of their dedication to this

13

Committee.

14

MS. KOLLER:

Tamara?

If I can just say thank you, too.

We've had

15

some really good support from the EAs, particularly

16

in Councilmember Tavares' office and Councilmember

17

Pontanilla and Mateo, and we really appreciate their

18

assistance.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, thank you.

Okay, Members, at this

20

point in time, the Chair sees no need to further

21

this day.

22

Friday and to enjoy your Easter weekend.

23

the reason of Easter weekend.

24
25

So therefore, I wish you a good, good
Remember,

Use your time well in preparing your
recommendation because the clock just got that much
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1

shorter when Monday starts and so you can expect the

2

marathon sessions to start.
Be aware that the Chair already is planning

3
4

to schedule for Tuesday afternoon after the Council

5

meeting to get back to committee work and -- well,

6

let me just end it that way.

7

end the note --

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR HOKAMA:

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So just for clarification, the

afternoon session is going to start at 1:30?
CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

Chair?

Yes, Mr. Kane?

12

14

Of course we need to

I am
just so we can deal with our

schedules.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am assuming that council meeting for

16

Tuesday will not be very long, that we will

17

definitely end before lunch.

18

half minimum for lunch is sufficient and then we can

19

return at 1: 30.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And therefore, an hour

So Mr. Chairman, so -- so you're

21

looking at recessing this meeting to the Tuesday

22

afternoon --

23

CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

meeting

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm -- I'm looking at recessing Monday's

Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

-- to take into account the ability to

2

reconvene on Tuesday afternoon and then we would

3

work in the afternoon, also being aware that at 6:00

4

p.m. Tuesday evening, the Council enters into its

5

real property tax public hearing process.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Okay, any announcements?

8

very much, Members.

9

appreciates it.

10
11

If not, thank you

Enjoy your weekend.

This meeting is adjourned.

(Gavel) .
ADJOURNED:

The Chair

5 : 36 p. m.
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